Public Document Pack

C'I"";Gm .
e i1y Flint
I i Contact Officer:
Eﬁ!!ﬂrtigbnl rc Tracy Waters 01352 702331

tracy.waters@flintshire.gov.uk

To: CliIr Clive Carver (Chairman)

Councillors: Marion Bateman, Paul Cunningham, Peter Curtis, Andy Dunbobbin,
Robin Guest, Ron Hampson, Richard Jones, Brian Lloyd, Richard Lloyd,
Vicky Perfect, David Roney, lan Smith, Nigel Steele-Mortimer and Arnold Woolley

8 April 2016
Dear Councillor
You are invited to attend a meeting of the Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny
Committee which will be held at 10.00 am on Thursday, 14th April, 2016 in the Delyn
Committee Room, County Hall, Mold CH7 6NA to consider the following items

AGENDA

1 APOLOGIES
Purpose: To receive any apologies.

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (INCLUDING WHIPPING
DECLARATIONS)

Purpose: To receive any Declarations and advise Members accordingly.

3 MINUTES (Pages 3 - 16)

Purpose: To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on
17t March 2016 (copy enclosed).

4 EMERGENCY PLANNING SERVICE UPDATE (Pages 17 - 46)

Report of Chief Executive and Regional Service Manager enclosed. Portfolio
of Cabinet Member for Corporate Management

Purpose: The Committee to receive an update from Emergency
Planning



REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2015/16 (MONTH 10) (Pages 47 - 82)

Report of Corporate Finance Manager enclosed. Portfolio of Leader of the
Council and Cabinet Member for Finance.

Purpose: To provide the latest revenue budget monitoring information for
2015/16 for the Council Fund and Housing Revenue Account
based on actual income and expenditure as at month 10 and
projected forward to year-end based on the most up to date
information available.

PRESENTATION BY REGIONAL DIRECTOR OF BT

Purpose: To receive a presentation from Miss Alwen Williams, Regional
Director of BT

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 83 - 88)

Report of Member Engagement Manager enclosed.

Purpose: To consider the Forward Work Programme of the Corporate
Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee.

Yours faithfully

f—ee

Peter Evans
Democracy & Governance Manager



87.

88.

Agenda Iltem 3

CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
17 MARCH 2016

Minutes of the meeting of the Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny
Committee of the Flintshire County Council held at County Hall, Mold on
Thursday, 17 March 2016

PRESENT: Councillor Clive Carver (Chairman)

Councillors: Marion Bateman, Paul Cunningham, Peter Curtis, Andy
Dunbobbin, Robin Guest, Ron Hampson, Richard Jones, Brian Lloyd, Richard
Lloyd, Vicky Perfect, David Roney, Nigel Steele-Mortimer and Arnold Woolley

APOLOGY:
Councillor Billy Mullin — Cabinet Member for Corporate Management

CONTRIBUTORS:

Councillor Aaron Shotton — Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance, Chief
Executive and Chief Officer (Governance)

For minute number 89

Superintendent Alex Goss from North Wales Police

For minute number 91

Finance Manager — Corporate Accounting and Systems and Technical
Finance Manager

For minute number 93

Interim Human Resources and Organisational Change Manager

IN ATTENDANCE:
Member Engagement Manager and Committee Officer

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

No declarations of interest were made.
MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 18" December
2015 (budget - am), 18" December 2015 (budget — pm), 29" January 2016
(budget) and 11t February 2016 had been circulated to Members with the
agenda.

ACCURACY
18th December 2015 — pm meeting

Councillor Richard Lloyd requested that the name Brian Mullin be
change to read Billy Mullin in the apologies section.

29t January 2016

Councillor Robin Guest asked for the heading of the minutes and the
date of the meeting to be correctly reflected in the body of the minutes.

Page 3



89.

MATTERS ARISING
11th February 2016

Councillor Richard Jones referred to page 22 and the clarification he
had sought on the efficiency measure for minor adaptations. He felt that
further explanation should be provided in reports where efficiencies had not
been achieved but had been replaced. In response to a comment from the
Chief Executive, Councillor Jones confirmed that he had received an
explanation following the meeting but he felt that it was important that the
information was provided in the report. The Chief Executive replied that this
could be included in future reports.

RESOLVED:

That subject to the suggested amendments, the minutes be approved as a
correct record and signed by the Chairman.

101 SERVICE PRESENTATION BY NORTH WALES POLICE

The Member Engagement Manager introduced Superintendent Alex
Goss from North Wales Police. He reminded the Committee that a discussion
on the 101 phone service had taken place during the attendance at the
meeting by the Police & Crime Commissioner, Mr. Winston Roddick, in
December 2015. As a result of that meeting a presentation on the 101 service
had been requested.

Superintendent Goss provided a detailed presentation which covered
the following areas:-

Operational Support Services (OSS)
Calls and Incidents recorded in 2015
Communications Operators

Contact (Voice)

Other Means of Contact

Web Chat

POD

What happens with a call?
Inappropriate 999 calls

Tri-Service working

Superintendent Goss was aware of the frustrations expressed about the 101
Service which he felt were shared nationally. He explained that the Force
Communications Centre at St. Asaph was the first point of contact for those
dialling 999 or 101 and that all 999 calls were answered within 10 seconds.
He added that a visit to the Centre could be facilitated for Members if required.
Superintendent Goss commented on the use of social media, which was an
extremely powerful form of contact, and Web Chat, which had been
introduced in July 2015; both were available 24 hours a day.

Page 4



The Centre was split into three areas which were Eastern for Wrexham
and Flintshire, Central for Conwy and Denbighshire and Western for Gwynedd
and Ynys Mon. A new telephony system was to be introduced in early 2017
which would allow calls from Flintshire to be directed to the Flintshire Pod
where operators who knew the area well would be situated. He provided
details of the priority given to calls received at the Communications Centre
and examples of inappropriate 999 calls which was a significant challenge as
it blocked people who genuinely needed the Police from using the service.
Close working was ongoing for the Police, Fire Authority and Ambulance
Service to ensure that the public got the best possible service available to
them at critical times.

A number of Councillors thanked Superintendent Goss for his
presentation.

The Chairman sought clarification on the recorded message received
when dialling 101 which asked the user to choose a language on two
occasions; he queried whether this could be streamlined. Superintendent
Goss advised that for 101 calls, callers heard a nationally determined bilingual
greeting which lasted 53 seconds before the call was put through to the
Control Centre where it would be answered. The greeting had been agreed
for use in all Police Forces in Wales but a number of enquires had been
received as to why it needed to be so long; work was ongoing to try and
reduce the length of the message. There was a charge of 15 pence per
minute for the 101 calls which was a national charge and was out of the
control of the Police as it was set by the Home Office. In North Wales, the
service had retained an 0300 number for the Control Room, which was free of
charge.

Councillor Richard Lloyd referred to a problem experienced by
residents in Saltney because they were close to the Cheshire border and were
directed firstly to Cheshire Police when they rang 101 or 999 from a mobile
phone. He also asked whether more officers were to be trained to be able to
operate the laptop connected to the CCTV cameras in Saltney. In response
Superintendent Goss provided a detailed explanation on how calls from
mobiles were directed, based on three service provider masts to ensure the
caller was passed to the Police Control Room through the quickest route.
This meant that those living in the Saltney area could automatically be
directed to Cheshire Police and would then need to choose option 4 for North
Wales Police. He explained that where calls were directed to was in the
control of the mobile service providers, not the Police. On the issue of training
for officers, he advised that he would provide a response following the
meeting.

Councillor Richard Jones asked why the Police were slow in
responding to 999 ‘crime in action’ calls. Superintendent Goss advised that
for priority zero calls, the time allowed to respond was 20 minutes but in the
majority of cases, officers responded in five minutes or less.

Page 5



In referring to the decline in the number of incidents recorded by the
Police, Councillor Robin Guest asked whether this was reflected in a reduction
in the number of calls received. He sought clarification on whether reporting
the issue of livestock on the road was an appropriate use of a 999 call and
whether action was taken against those who used the service inappropriately.
He queried whether there would be an impact on recruitment if calls from
Flintshire were only answered by operators employed from the area and
whether this was sustainable. In response, Superintendent Goss confirmed
that it was appropriate to phone 999 if the livestock on the road constituted a
danger and added that it would be the Crown Prosecution Service who would
decide if action was to be taken against individuals for inappropriate use of the
999 service. The reduction in the recording of incidents did coincide with the
reduction in calls which had fallen by 120,000 in a three year period. He
noted the comment about recruitment but explained that this had not been a
challenge yet due to the high volume of applications for the role of operators.

Councillor Peter Curtis asked whether there were any communication
barriers due to the large number of Polish residents in the area and queried
whether officers were also trained in sign language. Superintendent Goss
explained that some officers were fluent in languages other than English and
Welsh and ‘Language Line’ which was a national facility for translation of other
languages was also available to the Police. He added that some officers were
also trained in sign language.

In response to a query from Councillor Andy Dunbobbin about the
increased dominance of social media, Superintendent Goss explained that all
operators were trained in the use of social media, emails, webchat as well as
answering 999 and 101 calls.

Councillor Nigel Steele-Mortimer sought clarification on whether he had
appropriately used the 999 service to report an incident and in response
Superintendent Goss said that if life was at risk or a crime was in action then
999 was appropriate but if not, then the 101 service was the most appropriate
number.

In referring to an experience of when she had needed to use the 101
service and the length of time it had taken for the call to be answered,
Councillor Marion Bateman sought assurance that the amount of time taken to
answer 101 calls had reduced in the past two years. Superintendent Goss
advised that the average time taken to answer 101 calls was seven seconds
from when the call went through to the Control Room, which was after the 53
seconds for the bilingual message. In response to a query from Councillor
Lloyd on whether different operators dealt with 101 and 999 calls,
Superintendent Goss explained that both types of calls were answered by
operators but the telephony system ensured that there was always one
operator available to answer a 999 call. He added that the current system
was approximately five years old and that a new system was to be introduced
early in 2017.

Page 6



90.

The Chairman thanked Superintendent Goss for his presentation and
the offer of a visit to the Communications Centre.

RESOLVED:
That the presentation by Superintendent Alex Goss of North Wales Police be
received and Superintendent Goss thanked for his attendance and

contribution.

USE OF CONSULTANTS

The Chief Executive introduced a report to explain Council practice in
the use of consultants and how value for money was obtained from
commissioned consultancies.

The Chief Executive asked that the Committee review his report
objectively and keep the issues in proportion. The report from the Audit
Committee on 27 January 2016 was attached as an appendix; at that meeting
it had been agreed that an update report on controls would be submitted to
the July Audit Committee meeting. He commented on the use of consultants
in the public sector for areas where specific expertise was not already
available within those organisations, and gave details of the definition of a
consultant compared with an agency worker or interim manager.

It was acknowledged that the issue of financial coding had been a
concern and it was difficult to correctly ascertain the cost of properly defined
consultants for previous years. The report to Audit Committee had reported a
cumulative expenditure of £2.831m coded as consultancy spend in 2014/15.
The report had also identified figures shown as consultancy under the
procurement classification codes for business and management consultancy
and project management services to only be £0.433m for 2014/15; the four
known consultants over £25,000 contract value were detailed. The table in
the report showed a current total of £431,906 for consultancy costs for
2015/16 along with details of the projects that the consultants were working
on. The Chief Executive explained that all of these appointments were
supported by written business cases.

The previously used definitions of consultants had been too general in
their wording, leading to a range of expenditure, which should not have been
recognised as consultancy, being allocated to the consultancy codes in the
general ledger. A list of expenditure that had been incorrectly coded to
consultancy codes in recent years was reported in paragraph 2.02. New
controls had been put in place where Chief Officers could approve agency
spend up to £25,000 but approval of a business case for any new consultancy
work of a value of £25,000 or more would need to be given by the Chief
Executive.

The Corporate Finance Manager had been invited to make a formal

statement on cost control in his capacity as Section 151 Officer and this was
reported in paragraph 2.04.

Page 7



The two types of consultancy used were ‘fee based’ or ‘risk and reward’
and details of ‘live’ consultancies within Streetscene & Transportation, Social
Services and Corporate Services were reported. The Chief Executive
explained that consultancies were funded from one of three areas which were
(i) core budget, (ii) through ‘invest to save’ options or (iii) through Welsh
Government/other grant funding. There was strong evidence that skills and
knowledge had been transferred from the consultants to the Council to make
the organisation more self-sufficient for the future and examples of this were
detailed in the report. The Council was not too over-reliant on consultants.
He explained that whether ‘value for money’ was obtained from a consultant
was a judgement best made by weighing up whether a competitive price for
the work was obtained, whether the project was completed on time and
budget and whether the Council had achieved its organisational objectives by
engaging the consultant.

It had been difficult to obtain reliable comparable data from other
councils but four had been able to supply a total figure for all expenditure
coded as consultancy and this was reported with three having a higher spend
than Flintshire. He commented on the ‘risk and reward’ basis that some
councils used to engage consultants and gave details of the equivalent level
of employee that could be employed for a £50,000 or £25,000 consultancy
cost. The Chief Executive advised the Committee that the Technical Finance
Manager and her team were undertaking a significant amount of work to
ensure the coding was correct and therefore there would not be any coding
issues for 2016/17 onwards.

The Chief Officer (Governance) advised that he and the Chief
Executive were working closely with the Internal Audit Manager to ensure
appropriate systems were followed. He explained that the focus for this
Committee was the issue of ‘value for money’ whilst Audit Committee would
consider the process and whether it was working or not.

Councillor Aaron Shotton welcomed the opportunity for the report to be
debated at this Committee and reiterated the earlier comments that Audit
Committee would receive an update report in July 2016. He referred to the
significant concern at the costs of consultants (£1.6m for 146 consultants) that
had been reported to the Audit Committee in 2011 and indicated that the
accuracy of the data had been questioned at that time. The current amount of
14 consultants at a cost of £0.433m was significantly lower than in 2010/11
but Councillor Shotton reminded the Committee that the two figures could not
be compared as the £1.6m was for a six month period and the £0.433m was
for a ten month period. He referred to recent reductions in senior and second
tier management posts and felt that it was acceptable that the Council would
need to seek expert advice for some of the significant projects it was
undertaking such as the Strategic Housing and Regeneration Programme
(SHARP). However, he added that it was important to ensure that the
knowledge of the consultants was passed on to the staff in post. He said that
there had been a reduction in consultancy costs but more work was required
such as addressing the issue of incorrect coding.

Page 8



The Chairman sought clarification on the definition of consultants and
felt that ‘other goods and services’ for areas, which had been incorrectly
coded as consultancy work, which could include legal fees contradicted the
comment in paragraph 1.04 which indicated that consultants would normally
be employed to give legal advice. He also referred to information that was
provided as additional information to the statement of accounts following a
request from him on posts paid more than £60,000 per year whether these
where Council employees or posts covered by interim/temporary/contract
arrangements and suggested that the figure of £0.490m provided for 14/15
was different to the £0.433m figure provided to Audit and this Committee. The
Chief Executive advised that paragraph 1.04 related specifically to legal
advice on the formation of Alternative Delivery Models. The difference
between the spends correctly and incorrectly coded was whether they were
time limited or routine work and the Chief Executive added that the list in 2.02
was not exhaustive. The Chief Officer (Governance) explained that an area of
concern was because the organisation employed a number of senior officers
to provide advice and information that officers needed and that consultants
should therefore not be employed to duplicate advice that could be provided
by the senior officers. The Chief Executive gave a more detailed explanation
of the definition of consultants as reported in paragraph 2.03 and added that
in future the costs of consultants would be correctly coded.

Councillor Nigel Steele-Mortimer referred to the difference between the
figure of £2.8m originally reported for consultancy spend for 2014/15 and the
amount of £0.433m now reported. He expressed his concern at how the
balance of £2.398m had been spent and referred to areas which he felt should
be reported as consultants such as work on the Local Development Plan
(LDP) or the seeking of Counsel’s opinion on legal issues and suggested that
a breakdown should be provided. Councillor Richard Jones proposed the
request for details of how the £2.398m had been spent and this was duly
seconded. The Finance Manager advised that a list could be provided and
the Chief Executive said that this would be carried out as quickly as possible.
He advised that he would make enquires about the comments on the LDP but
explained that each of the consultants costs for charges over £0.025m each
had a business case which had been approved and added that the practice
would continue in the future.

Councillor Robin Guest raised concern about the ‘premium’ costs for
the use of agency workers to cover gaps that should be filled by permanent
employees. He welcomed the information on the definitions provided, the
areas that had incorrectly been coded to the area of consultancy in recent
years and also the request for a breakdown of the remaining £2.398m. He
also sought assurance that future coding would be correct and expressed his
concern at the comments of Councillor Shotton when referring to the
consultancy costs from 2011 which he felt could not be compared to the
current figures. In response, the Chief Executive spoke of the ongoing work
to ensure the codes for 2015/16 were correct and of the work that was being
carried out to ensure that officers were aware of the appropriate area to code
particular areas of spend to.

Page 9



Councillor Jones sought clarification on whether interim managers were
engaged through an agency and suggested that the definition provided may
be incorrect. The Chief Executive explained that there were some areas
where the MATRIX system was not the best system to use to engage the level
of assistance required and advised that interim and agency staff could be
engaged through the same route. He added that there was not a problem
with the coding of agency workers and stated that this was a separate area of
spend and was not coded as consultancy work. In response to a further query
from Councillor Jones, the Chief Executive said that both agency workers and
interim managers were temporary by definition. Councillor Jones referred to
the level of consultancy spend for 2013/14 which was £2.1m and the costs for
14/15 of £2.8m and queried why there had been an increase. The Chief
Executive reiterated his earlier comments about incorrect coding in previous
years and said that it was difficult to compare the two years because of coding
issues.

The Chairman referred to the information on agency workers referred
to as part of the item on Workforce Information which was to be considered
later in this meeting. The Chief Executive advised that further information
could be provided when the particular item was discussed but said that the
definition of agency workers had been included because of the confusion that
the Council had a number of consultants working in senior management roles;
he explained that there were none currently

Councillor Jones referred to the importance of ensuring that the use of
contractors was value for money.

In response to a question from Councillor Marion Bateman about
whether areas such as those shown as part of the £2.398m expenditure for
types of fees, goods and services for 2014/15 would be individually coded in
the future to allow the spends to be monitored, the Chief Executive confirmed
that this would be the case.

Councillor Shotton referred to the comments of Councillor Guest about
his reference to information on consultancy figures to the Audit Committee in
2011 and added that it has since been identified that the coding issues had
been a problem in previous years. The Chief Executive said that it was
extremely likely that the coding problems would have been repeated in
previous years and therefore the figures referred to for 2011 had been
artificially inflated. He provided assurance that the costs for 2015/16 would be
correctly coded because of the work that was being carried out and that this
would continue for future years.

Following earlier comments from Councillor Jones about the
importance of ensuring ‘value for money’ and the request for a breakdown of
the £2.398m, it was agreed that this could be submitted to the June meeting
of the Committee. The Chief Executive also suggested that a report on the
assurance of Value for Money be considered by the Committee on an annual
basis.

Page 10



91.

RESOLVED:

(@) That the Committee is assured by the explanations given over the
purpose of using consultants, the control of total cost and how value for
money is obtained from current Council commissioning and contract
management practice;

(b)  That the officers provide the Committee with details of the expenditure
between the £2.831m coded as consultancy spend in 2014/15 and the
£0.433m figure from the procurement classification; and

(c) That an analysis of the expenditure on consultants, to provide
assurance on Value for Money, be submitted to the June meeting of
the Committee and thereafter on an annual basis.

REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING (MONTH 9) AND CAPITAL
PROGRAMME MONITORING (MONTH 9)

Revenue Budget Monitoring (Month 9)

The Finance Manager — Corporate Accounting and Systems introduced
a report to provide Members with the Revenue Budget Monitoring 2015/16
(Month 9) report for the Council Fund and Housing Revenue Account (HRA)
which was to be submitted to Cabinet on 22 March 2016.

For the Council Fund, the projected net in-year expenditure was
forecast to be £1.242m lower than budget which was a positive movement of
£0.499m from Month 8. Appendix 1 detailed the movements from Month 8
which included an additional surplus from the Council Tax Collection Fund, an
underspend on the Council Tax Reduction Scheme provision, additional
funding from the Department of Work and Pensions and a reduction in
external audit fees and bank charges.

Appendix 3 provided details of the latest position of the programme of
efficiencies and it was projected that £10.744m (83%) would be achieved
resulting in a net underachievement of £2.130m. The Finance Manager had
noted the earlier comments on efficiencies which had not been achieved but
had been replaced. Taking into account the current underspend at Month 9
and previous allocations, the balance on the contingency reserve at 31 March
2016 was projected to be £4.878m. A summary of Earmarked Reserves as at
1 April 2015 was reported and the Month 9 estimate for the amount of
reserves at 31 March 2016 was £17,261,681.

The Month 9 Monitoring Report for the HRA was projecting in-year
expenditure to be £0.082m lower than budget and a projected closing balance
as at 31 March 2016 of £1.319m which was 4.25% of total expenditure.

Councillor Richard Jones referred to the movement from Education &

Youth to schools and sought an explanation of why this has occurred. He
also felt that the 83% figure for the achievement of efficiencies was incorrect

Page 11



as the difference between the amount achieved from Month 8 to Month 9 was
£0.170m which was a difference of 1.3%. In response, the Finance Manager
explained that the movement from the Education & Youth budget related to
the Additional Learning Needs delegated funding being moved from the
Inclusion Service to Schools. On the issue of efficiencies, she agreed to
check the figures.

Capital Programme Monitoring (Month 9)

The Technical Finance Manager introduced the report to provide
Members with the Capital Programme Monitoring 2015/16 (Month 9) report
which was also to be submitted to Cabinet on 22 March 2016.

Table 1 set out how the programme had changed during 2015/16 and
appendix A provided detailed cumulative information relating to each portfolio.
There had been a net decrease of £2.2885m in the programme with the main
decrease being a reduction in the budgeted level for the 215t Century Schools
programme. Table 2 provided the summary of the changes and the overall
decrease had been offset by grants and contributions which were reported in
paragraphs 1.07 to 1.10. Table 3 showed the current projected outturn of
£140.826 which was an overall underspend of £3.513m (£2.013m for Council
Fund and £1.500m for the HRA). A total rollover to 2016/17 of £1.500m was
being requested and two pressures totalling £0.088m had been identified
within the Transport & Streetscene portfolio which had been offset against
additional savings identified in the Flintshire Connects budget. The surplus
from 2014/15 was £1.314m but due to in-year increases and decreases, the
funding available for capital schemes was £2.986m as reported in table 6.

Councillor Richard Jones referred to the increase in Welsh Government
Grant for Vibrant & Viable Places of £1.357m and queried whether this related
to the Deeside cycle route. The Chief Executive suggested that the funding
was for a number of schemes for the designated area and he agreed that a
list of the projects could be circulated to Members.

In response to a comment from Councillor Robin Guest about requiring
more details on the need for rollover in funding, the Finance Manager
confirmed that additional information was included in appendix B. She asked
Councillor Guest to let her know if there were any details that he felt were not
included.

RESOLVED:

(@) That the Revenue Budget Monitoring 2015/16 (Month 9) report be
received,

(b)  That the Capital Programme Monitoring 2015/16 (Month 9) report be
received; and

(b) That the Committee confirms that it is not making any formal
recommendations to Cabinet on this occasion.

Page 12



92.

93.

QUARTER 3 IMPROVEMENT PLAN MONITORING REPORT

The Member Engagement Manager introduced a report to present the
monitoring of progress for the third quarter of 2015/16 focussing on the areas
of underperformance relevant to the Committee.

The Chief Executive advised that the efficiency targets were reported
monthly and any variations would be absorbed into the year-end information.
The risk relating to the scale of the financial challenge was recognised as a
national risk due to the uncertainty about future national financial planning.

On the issue of alternative delivery models through community asset
transfers, there had been 106 expressions of interest for 208 assets and if
they were all achieved, then 49% of the assets would be transferred. A report
which was to be considered by Cabinet on 22"d March 2016 included a list of
community assets with approved business plans. The Chief Executive
commented on the official handover of the Gwernymyndd Village Centre and
the recent opening of the Mancot Community Library.

RESOLVED:

That having considered the Quarter 3 Improvement Plan Monitoring Report,
the Committee is assured of progress and performance.

WORKFORCE INFORMATION REPORT — QUARTER 3 2015/16

The Interim Human Resources and Organisational Change Manager
introduced the report to provide Members with an update for the third quarter
for 2015/16 for the following:-

e Headcount and Full Time Equivalent (FTE)

¢ Organisational Age Profile

e Employee Turnover and Stability (including Redundancies and
Early Retirements)

Attendance (Including 100% Appraisal)

Performance Appraisals and Development

Resource Management (Agency Workers)

Equality and Diversity

The headcount for the Council continued to decrease and the cumulative
absence FTE days lost for quarter three was 7.34 which was a positive
movement. The projected outturn for 2015/16 was currently 9.78 which was
slightly above the annual target for the year of 9.60 days. The outturn figure
had reduced when compared with 2014/15 but there was a need to continue
to monitor the situation. On the issue of agency workers, the Interim Manager
explained that the majority of spend was within Streetscene & Transportation
which had 75 front line vacancies and Social Services which had used a
number of agency workers to cover vacancies and to supplement some of the
core workforce allocated to special/ad hoc projects.

Page 13



Councillor Robin Guest sought clarification on whether the issues
relating to appraisals had been resolved. The Interim Manager indicated that
there had been a positive response to the completion of appraisals but
difficulties in capturing the information within the software were still continuing.
Both the Chief Executive and the Interim Manager shared the frustrations
expressed by Members and the Interim Manager added that being able to
capture the data would assist with workforce planning.

In response to a question from Councillor Arnold Woolley, the Interim
Manager advised that the Council’s induction programme had recently been
updated to include those employees who had changed jobs within the
Authority. It was expected that this would be undertaken even though the
information was not being captured. Councillor Woolley expressed his
concern that the expectation was not being delivered and that there were no
controls in place to monitor this. The Chief Executive referred to the transition
arrangements that were in place and the Interim Manager explained that both
the employee and the manager had to sign to indicate that the induction had
taken place. The Chairman asked whether there were any employees who
had not had an appraisal for longer than a year. The Interim Manager
responded that there was a system in place to monitor when appraisals took
place which would include the date of the appraisal and any follow up action
or competency assessment that had been carried out.

The Chairman sought clarification on the 77 agency placements that
had exceeded the 12 week Agency Worker Regulations threshold. The
Interim Manager explained that the regulations gave agency workers
additional protection after 12 weeks on areas such as pay and holidays.

Councillor Arnold Woolley raised concern at the number of agency
workers who had been in place for more than 12 weeks and queried why they
were not employed by the Council to fill the vacancies that they were
covering. He also asked about costs for the Council in addition to
employment costs and felt that further explanations were required. In
response, the Interim Manager advised that length of time shown was for the
placement rather than for the time that an individual had been in the post.
She explained that the longer placements were in Streetscene where a
number of vacancies were being held and added that in this area, agency
workers would be paid less than the general operatives in Streetscene
because of the nature of the work that they undertook. The Chief Executive
explained that a number of vacancies were being held pending the completion
of a number of ongoing service reviews. Councillor Woolley expressed
significant concern at the way some of the information was reported as he felt
that it could be misinterpreted. The Interim Manager agreed to look at the
issue for the next Workforce Information report. The Chief Executive also
indicated that a report on the use of Agency Workers could be prepared for
submission to a future meeting.

Page 14



94.

95.

RESOLVED:

That having considered the Quarter 3 Workforce Information report, the
Committee is assured of progress.

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

The Member Engagement Manager introduced the report to consider
the Forward Work Programme for the Committee.

He detailed the items for consideration at the 14 April and 12 May 2016
meetings and indicated that the report on the Use of Agency Workers could
be included on the 12 May 2016 agenda. Presentations on BT and the
Flintshire Community Endowment Fund were due to be submitted to the April
and May meetings respectively.

The Chief Executive explained that the newly appointed Emergency
Planning Manager would be in attendance at the April meeting.

RESOLVED:

(@) That the Forward Work Programme, as submitted with the verbal
amendments, be approved; and

(b)  That the Member Engagement Manager, in consultation with the Chair,
Vice-Chair and officers, be authorised to vary the work programme
between meetings.

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS IN ATTENDANCE

There were no members of the public and one member of the press in
attendance.

(The meeting started at 10.00am and ended at 12.51 pm)

Chairman

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 4

Sir y Fflint
"E!m!o%!z.ire

MEETING
Date of Meeting Thursday 14 April 2016
Report Subject Emergency Planning Service Update
Cabinet Member Cabinet Member for Corporate Management
Report Author Chief Executive and Regional Service Manager
Type of Report Strategic
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Council has duties for emergency planning and response under the Civil
Contingencies Act 2004 and is a principal respondent in emergency situations. All
other councils have these duties.

North Wales is the first region in Wales to form a fully integrated service to support
all councils to fulfil their duties. Flintshire is the lead authority for the service. This
report presents the most recent annual report for the service.

Within Flintshire responsibilities for emergency planning and response are shared
across a number of portfolios by many services and named lead officers. The
Council has an Emergency Management Response Team structure with assigned
officers trained and skilled in their respective roles.

The Council is one of only two councils in the region to host Upper Tier COMAH
(Control Of Major Accident Hazards regulations) sites which require specific safety
planning arrangements under the COMAH 2015 Regulations. Three working
COMAH sites are located within Flintshire. The Committee has asked for a specific
briefing on COMAH sites.

This report on both the regional services and the arrangements for emergency
planning and response within Flintshire itself will be supported by a presentation at
the meeting.

Page 17



RECOMMENDATIONS

1

The Committee receives and is assured by the update.

2

The Committee receives future reports on the preparedness of the Council
to plan for emergencies and specific follow-up reports to any major local or
regional emergency events to which the Council has had to respond.

REPORT DETAILS

1.00

BACKGROUND AND TRANSITION TO A REGIONAL SERVICE

1.01

Until 2014 the Emergency Planning for Flintshire was a shared service
with Denbighshire. For the past two years North Wales has had an
integrated regional service led by Flintshire and supported by a
Management Board of all six councils and underpinned by an Inter-
Authority Agreement. The service, which is maturing as a regional entity, is
known as the Regional Emergency Planning Service (NWC-REPS). The
most recent annual report of the regional service is attached.

1.02

A regional performance management framework has been established
which is used to lead work-streams on preparedness for emergency
situations with each council having an informed level of self-awareness on
their local preparedness.

1.03

Whilst the team is integrated as a single entity, the service is structured
with an Eastern and a Western ‘hub’ serving three councils each, and each
council has a dedicated liaison officer with local knowledge and contacts.

1.04

The Emergency Management Response Team (EMRT) structure within
Flintshire itself includes a number of teams with specialist roles:-

Operational Team

Recovery Team

Humanitarian Assistance Team
Information Team

Business Continuity Management Group

1.05

Flintshire has a proven track record of response to emergency situations.
The level of preparedness for future incidents is good. Emergency
situations in recent years have been either caused by periods of extreme
weather or industrial incidents with a single case of migrant worker
concentration.

1.06

The EMRT structure, supported by its Liaison Officer, provides a robust
mechanism for delivery of planning and response functions. A process of
formalising the Terms of Reference for the supporting teams is underway

Page 18




in order to provide clarity on the role of each Team in the structure, and to
ensure effective delivery of work-streams.

1.07

A particular area of note is that of Business Continuity Management. In
January 2015, the service undertook an audit in Flintshire that produced a
number of recommendations which are to be taken forward via the
Business Continuity Management Group.

1.08

In collaboration with Natural Resources Wales, has provided support and
guidance in the development of a community flood plan for Talacre.

1.09

Buckley Town Council participated in exercise centurion shield in
September 2015. This was a no notice exercise for contacting the
voluntary sector to establish their response capability as well as to test the
multi-agency Project Exodus software.

1.10

COMAH (Control Of Major Accident Hazards regulations) sites

1.10.1

The Council is one of only two council in the region to host Upper Tier
COMAH sites require specific safety planning arrangements under the
COMAH 2015 Regulations. Three working COMAH sites are located
within Flintshire. The Committee has asked for a specific briefing on
COMAH sites.

1.10.2

The Upper Tier sites located in Flintshire are Warwick Chemicals, Mostyn;
Synthite Limited, Mold; and Headland Agrochemicals, Sandycroft. For
each site, an external (off-site) multi-agency plan is in place with a three
year exercise schedule overseen by the service. The enforcing agencies
for COMAH legislation are the Health & Safety Executive and Natural
Resources Wales. These bodies, along with the Council are termed as the
‘Competent Authority’. The service has developed a new multi-agency plan
template which is viewed as good practice across North Wales and has
been identified as a template for other industrial plans such as gas pipeline
plans. This work-stream helps the safe management of COMAH sites.

2.00

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01

The regional service is a cost effective and resilient model.

3.00

CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01

None required.

4.00

RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01

The purpose of the service is to reduce the risks of emergencies occurring
through prevention. The service also supports Business Continuity
Management for Council services.

Page 19




5.00

APPENDICES

5.01

North Wales Councils Regional Emergency Planning Service Annual
Report 2015/16.

6.00

LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
None

6.01

None

Contact Officer: Neil Culff, Regional Manager
Telephone: 01352 702120

E-mail: neil.culff@nwc-reps.org.uk

7.00

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01

Emergency Management Response Team: comprises of individual teams
working on the basis of integrating Emergency management activities to
daily business in order to encourage a cohesive approach in the
emergency response to any major emergency.

7.02

Business Continuity Management (BCM): is a planned process aimed at
managing the many varied operational risks inherent in the day to day
activities involved in the delivery of service.

Page 20



mailto:neil.culff@nwc-reps.org.uk

Annual Report 2014 - 2015

Author
Mr. Philip Harrison

Regional Manager
Page 21




Table of Contents Page Numbers

1.0 Introduction Page 2
2.0 Background Page 2-3
3.0 Service Highlights Page 4
3.1 Performance Page 4
3.2 Learning & Development Page 4-5
3.3 Business Continuity Page 5-6
3.4 Risks Page 6
35 Resilience Direct Page 6-7
3.6 Local Resilience Forum Page 8
3.7 Crisis Management Plans Page 8
3.8 Communications Page 8
4.0 Strategic Management Page 9-11
Plan
5.0 Key Work streams Page 12-18
6.0 Future Governance Page 19
7.0 Future Priorities Page 19 - 20
8.0 Financial Summary Page 21-22
9.0 Conclusion Page 23
Page 1

Page 22




1.0 Introduction

This is the annual North Wales Councils - Regional Emergency Planning Service report
for the year 2014-2015. It covers the work carried out by the Service across the six
local authorities in the region highlighting good practice, risks and challenges across
the six member councils and how future work streams will help to develop a more

robust and resilient response by each council to a major emergency.

The situation and needs of each council will be the subject of a separate local report

for internal use. The priorities for councils are listed later in this report.

2.0 Background

The Service became operational on July 1%t 2014 and during the past twelve months
the priority has been to develop a resilient regional approach to emergency planning

across the six local authorities.

The challenge was to successfully manage the change from five separate Emergency
Planning teams into a Regional Service. The Service now aligns with the Local
Resilience Forum boundary which is seen as a more practical way in which to work

within a multi-agency environment.
The Service has the following objectives:
e Reduction on duplication and repetition of tasks

e Improve the harmonisation of the work and resilience of teams

Page 2

Page 23




Improve deployment of available resources by sharing specialist support and

common tasks

Improved consistency of response between authorities

Improved communication channels between the North Wales Resilience Forum

and local authorities

Page 24

Page 3




3.0 Service Highlights

The Service supports and works with the local authorities as a team. Although there is
a liaison officer assigned to each local authority it is imperative that the authorities are
aware that they have access to each and every member of the Service, and that the
work being produced is a team and Service joint effort along with the individual

authorities.
3.1 Performance

Following close liaison with the performance leads within each council, the Service has
produced a performance management framework and Service plan. The plan is based
on the Operational Service work plan. It has been produced to ensure that each
authority maintains a link with the Service and be aware of the work being produced

on behalf of the region and individual authorities.

3.2 Learning and Development

The Service has produced a training matrix which collates details and captures
training information of all those who have attended emergency planning training. This
enables the Service to identify any training gaps and also to report to the authorities

the numbers trained /requiring training.

Since the start of the Service a number of training events and exercises have taken
place across the region which have been well supported by staff from the Authorities

which include:

Page 4

Page 25




e Exercise Dragon (Coastal Pollution Event)

e C(Coastal Pollution Workshop (in preparation for Exercise Dragon)
e Exercise Elwy (Flooding exercise in St Asaph)

e Exercise Cygnus (Strategic pandemic flu exercise)

e Introduction to Silver

e Silver Next Steps

e Business Continuity Management Awareness

e Rest Centre Managers / Rest Centre Staff Training

3.3 Business Continuity Management

Work has been carried out by the Emergency Planning Officer (responsible for Local
Authority Crisis Management and Resilience) on auditing of Business Continuity

plans and arrangements within each Council.

Audit reports have now been produced for five of the six Councils with the remaining
report being completed. The next steps are for each individual Council to approve the
audit report with the recommendations then being passed to the relevant working
group for action. This has already been carried out within three of the six Councils.
Emergency Planning Officers are currently in discussions with Business Continuity
leads in relation to the identified recommendations with Corporate Business
Continuity Groups / Emergency Planning Working groups being attended by Officers

as necessary in order to provide advice and guidance on any future actions required.

Page 5

Page 26




3.4 Risks

All planning derives from the identified risk. Work has begun and is ongoing on
identifying the local risk. This will fit in with the Business Continuity Management
review, identifying risks to critical Services which will prioritise the production of

plans across the authorities.
3.5 Resilience Direct

Resilience Direct is a new online secure ‘network’ for the emergency planning
workstream which enables the local authority and other emergency planning
practitioners to work together - across geographical and organisational boundaries -
during the preparation, response and recovery phases of an event or emergency. This is

currently free of charge for Category 1 responders.

Currently there is no logging facility but this function may be available sometime in the
future. Cabinet Office are aware of the desire within emergency planning for this
capability however, it is anticipated that there will be a charge for this function. This will

be the subject of a future report as new information emerges.

The system helps fulfil the duties placed upon each authority by the Civil Contingencies
Act 2004 by ensuring that key information is readily and consistently available to

registered users from the local authorities.

Page 6

Page 27




Resilience Direct can be used to:

e share emergency/business continuity plans both internally between Service s
and externally among others such as national/sub-national partner

organisations and neighbouring local authorities and partners

e maintain awareness of forthcoming exercises, events and meetings, and

accessing related documentation such as agendas, minutes or training material

e manage contact information to ensure a single, up-to-date version of distribution

lists
e issue news and guidance from central government to local responders

Resilience Direct is a web-based service built on a proven resilient and secure platform.
It is accredited to hold electronic documents with the relevant marking (i.e Official /
Sensitive) as defined in the Government Security Classification April 2014. Resilience
Direct is available for use by all Local Authority employees with a potential role in their

local authority emergency response arrangements.

During the third quarter of this year, identified administrators from within each
Authority will be offered training, and once this has been carried out they will be
supported by an additional administrator which will be a member of the NWC-REPS
team. Resilience Direct will be cascaded to members of staff engaged in emergency

response. [t is envisaged that this has a completion timeline of late 2016.

Page 7

Page 28




3.6 Local Resilience Forum (LRF)

A number of officers from the Service are active members of the LRF workgroups,
attending on behalf of the authorities. The Regional Manager represents the six Chief

Executives on the LRF group which is the strategic arm of the multi-agency groups.

3.7 Alignment of Crisis Management Plans

To reduce the duplication of plans, the Service has identified all those plans held
within the six local authorities. Collating this information has been a significant piece
of work with the next phase looking at how these plans can be streamlined and
standardised to fit in with the objective in reducing repetition and duplication across

the region.

3.8 Communications

A communications protocol has been produced by the Service which outlines the
communication channels and information sharing between the Service and the
authorities. This has been previously shared with the Executive Board. In addition to
this, regular meetings within each authority with the liaison offices have and will
continue to take place. The local authorities should by now see the benefit of having

access to the full Service not just individual officers as per the pre regional model.

Page 8

Page 29




4.0 Regional Emergency Planning Service - North Wales Councils:

Strategic Management Plan 2014 /1

This Strategic Management Plan provides the framework for the six Councils in North
Wales in ensuring that advice and training is provided for their Emergency Response.
Integrated Emergency Management focuses on a generic response to any kind of
emergency and not the specific cause and will draw on officers from many
departments across an Authority in the event of an emergency. The process aligned to
this will be a rigorous training programme. This outlines the Operational Plan for 2014
/ 2017, and identifies the outcomes, milestones and RAG Assessment. The following
pages illustrates the outcomes, milestones and RAG assessment of the Strategic

Management Plan, to support the emergency response and recovery of each authority.

Red identifies a shortfall against | Green identifies that action

requirement meets all aspects of requirement

Page 9

Page 30




Develop a North Wales Regional

Emergency Planning Service

1.1 Meetings with Strategic Management Teams across

six Councils

Annual

Report

2.1 Liaison officers to risk assess key threats/risks across

o ) o ) Individual
Prepare Work Plans for individual Councils individual Council areas.
Council
2.2 Liaison Officers to maintain close links with key
report
emergency response personnel within Councils.
3.1 Identify events/exercises relevant to all Officers
involved at Gold, Silver and Bronze level
Carry out training needs analysis across Annual
) ) 3.2 Focus on Integrated Emergency Management
the six Counties Report
making use of the NWRF Learning & Development
events
4.1 Regionalise plans, processes & procedures to reduce
duplication of effort.
Common templates for _ ) ) )
4.2 Develop checklists/aide memoires to assist
Plan/Protocols/Procedures across the six _ . Audit
Gold/Silver leads once a major emergency has been
Councils o
initiated.
4.3 Identify single Emergency Contacts Directory
5.1 Identify current best practices.
Implement a common approach to ) ) .
5.2 Incorporate best practices across all Counties to Strategic
emergency response procedures across o . )
reflect a harmonisation to response across the region | Exercises
the six Councils
5.3 Conduct annual single/joint Council exercises.
6.1 Identify current best practices
6.2 Review/re-assess Business Impact Assessments
) o ) ) across all Councils
Standardise Critical Business/Service S
udit

Continuity plans across the region

6.3 Test and review Business/Service Continuity Plans

6.4 Work closely with Education to advise Schools under

LA control to have robust Service Continuity in place.

Page 31

Page 10




7.1 Act as a first point of contact to enable identified key

officers from each Council to respond to an

Annual
Support Councils out of hours by providing emergency. _
Service
Standby Officers 7.2 Provide officer support as advisors to Council’s
Report
designated officers when attending Gold and Silver
groups.
De-brief
each event
Engage with Safety Advisory Groups 8.1 Chair Safety Advisory Group for multi Council events. | 4ilise
across the region.
lesson
learnt going
forward.
9.1 Identify suitable software to enable cross regional
logging to support cross border events.
9.21 tigat t ti the E Annual
.2 Investigate current practices across the Emergenc
Identify best use of technology to support £ 3 S S
ervice
) ) Service s and other Local authorities from across
regional working
Report
the UK.
) ) ) 10.1 Continue the development and consolidation of
Continue to develop effective partnerships
Individual
i . partnerships.
with communities, Category 1 & 2
Council
responders & other relevant organisations. | 10.2 Maintain effective liaison through Area Flood .
repor
Partnerships, Community Councils etc
11.1 Regional Manger to support Chief Exec at NWRF
11.2 Identify a cadre of Gold/Silver officers to attend NWRF
Support the North Wales Resilience Forum
multi-agency SCG/Silver group.
and Task Groups. Co-
11.2 Service to provide officer support to NWRF and ordination
Task Groups group

Page 32




5.0 The Operational Plan Key Work streams 2015 - 2018 (3 Year Rolling

Programme)

The Service has identified and reports on the Service performance using the same key
ten work streams. These are also in line with the requirements of the Civil
Contingencies Act 2004. The purpose of the 3 year rolling programme is to enable the
Strategic Manager to set out the Service specific key work streams for the term, the
targets and milestones achieved, and the actions and targets that will be taken during
the term. This will enable the Executive Board and all employees on a regional and
County basis to understand the focus of the Service for the programme and the

improvements needed for a successful outcome.

In addition to this report and to back up the progress made within each authority, a

separate performance report will be produced.

REPS 001 Risk - Identification and

Page 12

Page 33




REPS 002

REPS 003

REPS 004

REPS 005

REPS 006

REPS 007

REPS 008

REPS 009

REPS 010

Prioritisation of risk, also maintain

risk register
Engagement
Communication & Information

Resilience and Business Continuity

Management
Community and Organisation

Major Emergency Plans and

Recovery Arrangements

Major Industrial & Transport

Accident
Severe Weather Plans

Welfare & Health

Training and Exercises

Page 13

Page 34




Ref

Outcomes

Milestones/Targets

RAG
Assessment

REPS

001

Risk Identification and Prioritisation

of risk, also maintain risk register

1. By assessing the risk to the authorities produce a risk
register relevant to each of the Local authorities based
on the Civil Contingencies Act 2004 and Business

Continuity Management risk relevant to the Authority

REPS

002

Engagement

2. Provide ongoing support to the Local authorities and
Service s, which will include facilitating and supporting
emergency management teams, flood partnerships and

Local Authority Operation teams

3. Attend relevant external emergency planning related
meetings on behalf of the Local authorities including
North Wales Local Resilience Forum, partner agencies,

specific site operators e.g. COMAH Sites

REPS

003

Communication & Information

4. Ensure Resilience Direct is rolled out to all six Local
authorities , with administrators being identified for

each Local Authority

Amber - action in
hand to meet

requirement

Amber - action in

hand to meet

requirement

5. Review weather warnings and arrangements across
North Wales and standardise these arrangements.
Standardise the protocol Warnings from external
partner agencies for the receipt of warnings from the

partner agencies across the 6 Local authorities

Amber - action in
hand to meet

requirement

Page 35




6. Public Information Strategy - to review Press and Public
Information arrangements across the 6 Local authorities | Amber -action in
including Social Media and the Radiation (Emergency hand to meet
Preparedness and Public Information Regulations) 2001 requirement
REPPIR Schedule 17
7. Standardise Emergency Planning Information on Local
Authority web pages
8. Create an emergency contacts directory for external
agencies
9. Continue to support Local authorities in developing -
Amber - action in
their Service continuity plans and corporate business
hand to meet
continuity plans (as highlighted in each Local Authority :
requirement
Business Continuity and Resilience Audit conducted by
the Service )
REPS Resilience and Business Continuity Amber - action in
10. To review business continuity information for local
004 Management hand to meet
businesses and communities
requirement
11. Support Local authorities in developing Building

Service s Management Plans

Page 36




REPS

005

Community & Organisation

12. Support the Local authorities in promoting community

resilience and response planning

13. Support Local authorities in promoting Business

Continuity Planning for Local Organisations

14. When necessary support the production of a multi
agency response plan for specific events such as the

Eisteddfod

REPS

006

Major Emergency Plans and Recovery

Arrangements

15. Develop major emergency management policy for Local
authorities and review major emergency operational

plans

16. Review Recovery Arrangements including site clearance

17. Standardise control room arrangements across North

Wales.

Page 37




18.

Support the Local authorities in producing local Mass

Fatalities plans

19.

Provide Local authorities with an out of hours
response and provide initial mobilisation, provide

support and guidance

REPS

007

Major Industrial & Transport

Accident

20.

Support the development of a North Wales Maritime Oil
Pollution Plan based on the National Contingencies Plan

for Oil spills

Amber - action in

hand to meet

requirement

21.

Develop one common template for Major Accident

Hazardous Pipeline plans

Amber - action in
hand to meet

requirement

22.

Complete outstanding COMAH plans on behalf of the

Local authorities

Amber - action in
hand to meet

requirement

23.

Reservoir planning to work with relevant North Wales
Agencies to Risk Assess the possible impact on
communities in case of a breach. Also to support the

production of a general North Wales Plan

Amber - action in
hand to meet

requirement

24.

Support Anglesey Council and Gwynedd Council in
developing local arrangements including road diversions

etc. in the events of bridge closure

Amber - action in
hand to meet

requirement

Page 38




25. Audit Severe Weather Plans and Arrangements across

the six Local authorities

REPS

Severe Weather Plans 26. Audit and review flood response arrangements across

008
North Wales and standardise arrangements across the
Local authorities . This will include working with the

North Wales Flood Risk Management group in

standardising flood risk management arrangements

27. Standardise welfare & rest centre plans across North

Wales

REPS
Welfare & Health

009

28. Support the NWRF and Local authorities in developing

the Humanitarian Assistance Plan and guidance

29. To maintain training matrix on behalf of the Local

authorities

30. To represent the Local authorities on the NWRF
Learning & Development Group with arranging future

REPS training

Training and Exercises
010 31

. To facilitate and arrange Awareness training for external
partner agencies such as emergency Service s control

room staff on specific Local authorities Arrangements

32. To advise and guide on Local Authority emergency
planning training requirements, and identify any further

training requirements

Page 39




Page 40




6.0 Future Governance

The governance board consists of executive level officers from the six councils. They
have met with the Service managers twice over the last twelve months. Update reports
were presented and discussed at the board and actions to and from Service managers

were agreed.

Separate to the executive board meetings, the Service operational manager has met on
various occasions with board members within their own councils. This is seen as a

positive approach to agreeing on those work streams specific to each council.
7.0 Future Priorities

The future priorities of the Service will be to maintain the work programme, by
ensuring that the identified key work streams are met. As a Service we will embrace
and encourage authorities to adopt Resilience Direct into a workable system and we

will continue to engage with all relevant council staff on training and usage.

A significant work stream for the coming year is around ‘Reservoir Inundation Plans’.
To fully focus on this, a student placement has been secured with an undergraduate
studying Disaster Management & Emergency Planning at Coventry University on a

twelve month contract who will focus on this project.

Community Resilience is another significant piece of work which the Service will be
undertaking over the next two years and beyond, concentrating on engagement with

the wider voluntary organisations and community councils.

Page 19

Page 41




The Service as a whole will continue to support and develop strong communication

channels between the Service, local authorities and partner agencies.

Another key workstream is for the Service to fully identify the required training needs
of staff and senior managers, by developing a learning and development programme

for each council, this will also support future mutual aid requirement in an emergency.

The main objectives for the Service are categorised as follows;

1. Set up Resilience Direct within councils (including logging system)

2. Ensure the harmonisation of plans to be uploaded onto Resilience Direct as a
repository for regional and single council emergency response plans

3. Ensure authorities develop a common approach to Business Continuity
Management (BCM) , and promote a consistent approach to BCM across the
region

4. Ensure Community Resilience by engaging with community councils following
the piloting of an exercise in Flintshire in October

5. Develop a generic crisis management policy to be incorporated into the six
councils

6. Continue to promote and encourage training and exercises within each council

Page 20

Page 42




8.0 Financial Summary

The budget has brought in the required 2% savings for 2014 / 2015 as agreed by the

Executive Board plus an early settlement of the additional funding (£38,934). This

represents an additional saving of 5.64% for the future budget.

North Wales Councils Regional Emergency Planning Service Contributions

YEAR 1

Contribution

Additional

HUB Recharge

Contribution

TOTAL

YEAR 1

CONTRIBUTION

Anglesey
Conwy
Denbighshire
Flintshire
Gwynedd
Wrexham

TOTAL

£68,417 £4,065 £72,482
£110,676 £6,597 (£2,520) £114,753
£97,122 £5,821 £102,943
£126,412 £7,476 (£2,520) £131,368
£117,463 £7,009 £124,472
£133,259 £7,966 £141,225
£653,349 £38,934 (£5,040) £687,243
Page 21

Page 43




YEAR 2

Contribution TOTAL
2% HUB
YEAR 2
EFFICIENY Recharge
CONTRIBUTION
Anglesey £68,417 £1,368 £67,049
Conwy £110,676 £2,214 (£2,520) £105,942
Denbighshire £97,122 £1,942 £95,180
Flintshire £126,412 £2,528 (£2,520) £121,364
Gwynedd £117,463 £2,349 £115,114
Wrexham £133,259 £2,665 £130,594
TOTAL £653,349 £13,067 (£5,040) £635,242
YEAR3
Contribution TOTAL
2% HUB YEAR 3
EFFICIENY Recharge CONTRIBUTION
Anglesey £67,049 £1,341 £65,708
Conwy £108,462 £2,169 (£2,520) £103,773
Denbighshire £95,180 £1,904 £93,276
Flintshire £123,884 £2,478 (£2,520) £118,886
Gwynedd £115,114 £2,302 £112,811
Wrexham £130,594 £2,612 £127,982
TOTAL £640,282 £12,806 (£5,040) £622,436

Page 44

Page 22




9.0 Conclusion

The first twelve months of the Service has provided not just challenges but also

opportunities to develop a new approach to cross council working.

The work programme is on course to accomplish the vision for: reducing duplication
of tasks, harmonising plans and resilience of teams, improve sharing of specialist
support and common tasks, ensuring all Local authorities are at the same state of

readiness and improving communications between the councils and the NWRF.

Looking ahead to the changes and challenges that will inevitably occur over the next
few years with the realignment of councils and, with the support of the executive
board we are confident that as a Service, having already gone through the process, we

can demonstrate the positive effects of regional collaborative working.

With the appropriate governance and strong working partnerships in place there is
optimism that the objectives will be met and that the regional model will demonstrate
the positive effects of regional collaboration. The Service will continue working
closely with the executive board members to ensure good governance and

communication across the region continues.

END

Page 23

Page 45




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 5

Sir y Fflint
("!i!in!o%!z.ire

CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
Date of Meeting Thursday 14 April 2016
Report Subject Revenue Budget Monitoring (Month 10)
Cabinet Member Leader of the Cabinet and Cabinet Member for
Finance
Report Author Corporate Finance Manager
Type of Report Operational
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is to provide Members with the Revenue Budget
Monitoring 2015/16 (Month 10) Report.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 That the committee considers and comments on the Revenue Budget
Monitoring 2015/16 (Month 10) report. Any specific matters for
attention will be noted and reported verbally to the Cabinet when it
considers the report.

REPORT DETAILS

1.00 | EXPLAINING THE REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING POSITION
2015/16 (MONTH 10)

1.01 | The Revenue Budget Monitoring 2015/16 (Month 10) report will be
presented to Cabinet on Tuesday 22 March 2016. A copy of the report
is attached as Appendix A to this report.

Page 47



2.00

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01

As set out in Appendix A; Revenue Budget Monitoring 2015/16 (Month
10).

3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 | None required.

4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 | As set out in Appendix A; Revenue Budget Monitoring 2015/16 (Month

10).

5.00 | APPENDICES

5.01 | Appendix A; Revenue Budget Monitoring 2015/16 (Month 10).
6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 | None required.

Contact Officer: Sara Dulson, Finance Manager
Telephone: 01352 702287
E-mail: sara.dulson@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01

(1) Revenue: a term used to describe the day to day costs of running
Council services and income deriving from those services. It also
includes charges for the repayment of debt, including interest, and
may include direct financing of capital expenditure.

(2) Budget: a statement expressing the Council’s policies and service
levels in financial terms for a particular financial year. In its broadest
sense it includes both the revenue budget and capital programme and
any authorised amendments to them.

Page 48




APPENDIX A

T iy Flint
Flintshire

CABINET MEETING
Date of Meeting Tuesday, 19 April 2016
Report Subject Revenue Budget Monitoring 2015/16 (Month 10)
Portfolio Holder Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Finance
Report Author Corporate Finance Manager
Type of Report Operational
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This regular monthly report provides the latest revenue budget monitoring position
for 2015/16 for the Council Fund and Housing Revenue Account. The position is
based on actual income and expenditure as at Month 10, and projects forward to
year-end.

The projected year end position is as follows:
Council Fund

e Net in year expenditure forecast to be £1.110m lower than budget
¢ Projected contingency reserve balance at 31 March 2016 of £4.746m

Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

¢ Net in year expenditure forecast to be £0.092m lower than budget
e Projected closing balance as at 31 March 2016 of £1.329m

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 Note the overall report and the projected Council Fund contingency sum
as at 315t March 2016.

2 Note the projected final level of balances on the Housing Revenue
Account.

Page 49



APPENDIX A

3 To agree the carry forward requests as stated in Appendix 6.

REPORT DETAILS

1.00 | THE REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING POSITION FOR MONTH 10 -
2015/16

1.01 | Council Fund Latest In Year Forecast
The table below shows the projected position by portfolio.

In-Year
TOTAL EXPENDITURE Original | Revised | Projected | Over/
AND INCOME Budget Budget Outturn | (Under)
spend
£m £m £m £m
Social Services 59.696 59.031 58.995 | (0.036)
Community & Enterprise 12.598 12.872 12.261 | (0.611)
Streetscene &
Transportation 27.782 28.440 29.348 | 0.908
Planning & Environment 4.887 5.420 5.531 | 0.111
Education & Youth 13.760 12.127 12.129 | 0.002
Schools 82.670 84.273 84.273 | 0.000
People & Resources 4.595 4.609 4.505 | (0.104)
Governance 8.689 8.715 8.958 | 0.243
Organisational Change 9.569 9.546 9.105 | (0.441)
Chief Executive 3.296 3.087 2.909 | (0.178)
Central & Corporate
Finance 23.915 23.337 22.333 | (1.004)
Total 251.457 251.457 250.347 | (1.110)

1.02 | The reasons for the projected variances occurring to date are summarised
within appendix 2 with movements between periods summarised in appendix
1.

1.03 | Significant budget movements between original and revised budget
There has been a significant budget movement in month 10, £0.607m was
transferred from the delegated Schools budget to Education & Youth. This
relates to the realignment of the Additional Learning Needs delegated funding.
There has also been a transfer of £0.102m from Central & Corporate Finance
to Planning & Environment of £0.089m and Streetscene & Transportation of

Page 50




APPENDIX A

£0.014m relating to successful single status appeals.

1.04

Streetscene and Transportation

The overall overspend within Streetscene & Transportation has increased
from a projected £0.897m overspend at Month 9 to £0.908m as at Month 10.
The projected overspend within the service is due in part to the delay in the
implementation of a number of efficiencies as reported to the Programme
Board. In addition fluctuations in recycle sales due to a volatile market has led
to an increased pressure on income projections which have resulted in a
shortfall of £0.390m. Full details of movements are explained in Appendix 2.

1.05

Programme of Efficiencies

The 2015/16 budget contains £12.874m of specific efficiencies which are
being tracked.

1.06

Appendix 3 provides detail on the latest position where there is a variation to
the level of efficiency achievable compared to the budget.

1.07

This shows that it is currently projected that £10.628m (83%) will be achieved
resulting in a net underachievement of £2.246m. The underachieved
efficiencies are included within the projected outturn figure. The position will
continue to be monitored and reported throughout the monthly monitoring
process.

1.08

Inflation

Included within the 2015/16 budget are provisions for pay (£1.304m), targeted
price inflation (£0.421m), non-standard inflation (£0.102m) and income
(£0.254m).

1.09

For 2015/16 the amounts for non-standard inflation (NSI) include an allocation
for food (£0.064m) and an allocation for Non Domestic Rates (£0.038m).

1.10

There is an amount of £0.240m remaining from 2014/15 which is also being
held centrally. Areas subject to NSI increases will be monitored throughout
the year and allocations made to portfolio areas only where a critical funding
need is evidenced.

It is anticipated that the £0.064m for food inflation will not be required. In
addition to this there is a surplus of £0.061m remaining from inflation set aside
for pay. Therefore £0.125m is now projected to underspend. The balance of
the 2014/15 inflation and £0.110m from the in-year inflation have been
included as an efficiency within the 2016/17 budget.

Page 51




APPENDIX A

Reserves and Balances

1.12

Unearmarked Reserves

The 2014/15 outturn reported to Cabinet on 14" July 2015 showed
unearmarked reserves at 31 March 2015 (above the base level of £5.769m) of
£4.746m.

1.13

Taking into account previous allocations and the current underspend at Month
9 the balance on the contingency reserve at 315t March 2016 is projected to
be £4.746m.

1.14

Earmarked Reserves

The Council has developed a reserves protocol which was considered by
Audit Committee and approved by County Council on 24t September 2015.
This sets out the principles around how the council will determine, manage
and review the level of its reserves and includes reference to regular reporting
of the latest position to Cabinet and Corporate Resources Overview and
Scrutiny Committee.

The next updated position on earmarked reserves will be included in the
month 12 monitoring report.

1.15

Housing Revenue Account

On 17 February 2015 the Council approved a Housing Revenue Account
(HRA) budget for 2015/16 of £30.776m. The budget provided for a closing
balance of £1.396m.

1.16

The 2014/15 Outturn Report to Cabinet on 14 July 2015 showed a closing
balance at the end of 2014/15 of £1.510m.

1.17

The Month 10 monitoring report for the HRA is projecting in year expenditure
to be £0.092m lower than budget and a projected closing balance as at 31
March 2016 of £1.329m, which at 4.3% of total expenditure satisfies the
prudent approach of ensuring a minimum level of 3%.

1.18

Carry Forward Requests

Various requests to carry forward funding into 2016/17 have been identified.
Details of all carry forward requests are shown in appendix 6 and are
recommended for approval.

2.00

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01

The Budget Monitoring Report reflects the planned use of the financial

Page 52




APPENDIX A

resources of the Council for the current financial year and details the
variations occurring to date.

3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 | None Required.

4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 | Municipal Mutual Insurance (MMI)

MMI was the predominant insurer of public sector bodies prior to 1992
when it failed. To ensure an orderly “run off’ Flintshire, along with other
local authorities, was required to pay a levy of 15% of its share of claims
paid previously and of any future claims. MMI’s administrator has recently
published their 2015 accounts which shows that due to an increase in the
number of claims generally, there will be a need to increase the levy in the
future, affecting claims paid previously and future claims. A
recommendation was approved to meet a significant liability which reflects
a 20% increase in the levy however there remains a risk that the future
provision may escalate further.

Status: stable/green risk.

4,02 | Recycling

The recycling market (paper in particular) is going through a volatile period
with fluctuating re-cycle sale values. This will impact on 2015/16 recycling
income levels for the Council. The current impact is reflected in the Month
9 projections and continues to be monitored throughout the year. A budget
pressure for this income has been included in the 2016/17 budget to help
mitigate this risk for future years.

Status: unstable/red risk.

4.03 | Out of County Placements

The risk is the volatility in demand and the impacts on service costs which
cannot be predicted with any certainty. Therefore there is always a risk of
significant variances occurring although this area continues to be closely
monitored.

Status: unstable/amber risk.

5.00 | APPENDICES

5.01 | Council Fund — Movement in Variances from Month 9 — Appendix 1
Council Fund — Budget Variances — Appendix 2

Council Fund — Programme of Efficiencies — Appendix 3

Council Fund — Movement on unearmarked reserves — Appendix 4
Housing Revenue Account Variances — Appendix 5

Council Fund — Carry Forward Requests — Appendix 6

Page 53



APPENDIX A

| ]

6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 | None required

Contact Officer: Sara Dulson

Finance Manager
Telephone: 01352 702287
E-mail: sara.dulson@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00 | GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 | Budget: a statement expressing the Council's policies and service levels
in financial terms for a particular financial year. In its broadest sense it
includes both the revenue budget and capital programme and any
authorised amendments to them.

7.02 | Council Fund: the fund to which all the Council’'s revenue expenditure is
charged.

7.03 | Financial Year: the period of twelve months commencing on 1 April.

7.04 | Housing Revenue Account: the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is a
local authority account showing current income and expenditure on
housing services related to its own housing stock. The account is separate
from the Council Fund and trading accounts and is funded primarily from
rents and government subsidy.

7.05 | Projected Outturn: projection of the expenditure to the end of the
financial year, made on the basis of actual expenditure incurred to date.

7.06 | Reserves: these are balances in hand that have accumulated over
previous years and are held for defined (earmarked reserves) and general
(general reserves) purposes. Councils are required to regularly review the
level and purpose of their reserves and to take account of the advice of the
Chief Finance Officer.

7.07 | Revenue: a term used to describe the day-to-day costs of running Council
services and income deriving from those services. It also includes charges
for the repayment of debt, including interest, and may include direct
financing of capital expenditure.

7.08 | Underspend: when referring to expenditure the actual expenditure
incurred is less than budget. Shown as a —ve. When referring to income
the actual income achieved exceeds the budget. Shown as a —ve.

Page 54



APPENDIX A

7.09 | Variance: difference between latest budget and actual income or
expenditure. Can be to date if reflecting the current or most up to date
position or projected, for example projected to the end of the month or
financial year.

7.10 | Virement: the transfer of budget provision from one budget head to
another. Virement decisions apply to both revenue and capital expenditure
heads, and between expenditure and income, and may include transfers
from contingency provisions. Virements may not however be approved
between capital and revenue budget heads.

Page 55



Page 56



r Sir y Filint
“ Flintshire

Month 9

Portfolios

Central and Corporate Finance
Variance as per Cabinet Report

Month 10
Portfolios
Central and Corporate Finance

Variance as per Directorate Returns

Change Requiring Explanation
Social Services

Services For Adults

COUNCIL FUND - REVENUE BUDGET 2015/16
FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Budget Monitoring {Month 10)
Summary of Movement from Month 9

£m

(0.106)
(1.136)

(0.106)
(1.004)

(1.242)

e Locality Teams (Older People Purchasing} - reduction in projected overspend due to reduced
demand for domiciliary care (-£0.036m), and residential care (-£0.021m), with other minor
variances making up the remaining -£0.004m.

¢ Residential Care (Older People - Provider Services) - increase in projected property income and

increase in income for free nursing.

¢ Other Services for Adults (Older People - Pravider Services) - anticipated use of reserve no
longer to be drawn down as part of intemnal reserve management strategy

* Resources & Regulated Services - Increasa in costs due for a retrospective claim from a service
provider following a rate increase agreed by the former commissioning hub.

® Vulnerable Adults and Disability Service (Disability Services) - revised commitment for
new/existing transition service users following service review.

s Administrative Support (Disabiiity Services) - transfer of agency social worker costs to PDSI (-
£0.041m), plus reallocation of advocacy costs (-£0.028m).

Minor variances of less than £0.025m

® Leaming Disabilities / PDSI

¢ Older People (Provider Services)

* Older People (Purchasing)
e Mental Health Services

Subtotal: Services for Adults

Development & Resources

(0.061)

(0.067)
0.163
0.230

(0.417)

(0.069)

0.004

(0.001)

(0.001)
0.002

(1.110)
0.132

* Good Health team - costs of a NEWCIS Saturday Carer Event held in Croes Atti.

Minor variances of less than £0.025m
¢ Business Systems and Financial Assessment

e Deputyship Team

e Business Services - Income
e Management & Support

e Training

e Commissioning

0.032

(0.006)
0.001
0.010
0.010

(0.009)
0.005

(0.217)

Subtotal: Development & Resources

Children's Services

Minor variances of less than £0.025m

* Children's Training

e Family Placement

e Grants

s Family Support

¢ Prevention & Support

e Other Residential

e Proffesional Support

¢ Flying Start

e QOut of County

e Children & Safeguarding

Subtotal: Children's Services

Total: Social Services

(0.014)
0.011
(0.014)
0.009
0.009
0.001
0.022
0.017
0.018
0.002

0.043

Page 57

0.061

(0.113)

Appendix 1



Community & Enterprise

Customer & Housing Services

e Additionai underspend on Flintshire Connects (0.007)
Subtotal: Cust Housing Services (0.007)
Council Fund Housing

» Procurement of Telecare Equipment 0.018

» Savings in respect of the Community Based Accommodation Support Service (0.062)
Subtotal: Council Fund Housing {0.044)
Regeneration

¢ Reduced Markets income 0.002

o Further capitalisation of costs in Housing Regeneration & Strategy (0.030)
Subtotal: Regeneration (0.028)
Revenues & Benefits

s Additional Surplus on the Council Tax Collection Fund (0.050)

¢ Further underspend on the Council Tax Reduction Scheme provision (0.007)

¢ Additional DWP New Burdens funding (0.014)
Subtotal: Revenues & Benefits (0.071)
Housing Programmes

® SHARP Procurement 0.031
S : Housing Progr 0.031
Minor changes of less than £0.025m.

e Customer & Housing Services 0.011

e Council Fund Housing 0.001

* Regeneration (0.014)

* Revenues & Benefits 0.010

* Housing Programmes 0.027
Total minor variances of less than £0.025m 0.035
Total: Community & Enterprise (0.084)

Streetscene & Transportation Portfolio

Minor variances of {ess than £0.025m

e Ancillary Services & Performance 0.012

e Highway Network (0.012)

e Transport & Logistics 0.011
Total minor variances of less than £0.025m 0.011
Total: Streetscene & Transportation 0.014

Planning & Environment Portfolio

Minor variances of less than £0.025m

e Business (0.013)

e Community 0.001

e Development 0.015

e Strategy 0.004

* Administration 0.006

* Vacant Posts (0.024)
Total minor variances of less than £0.025m {0.011)
Totai: Planning & Environment (0.011)

Page 58

Appendix 1



Appendix 1

Education & Youth

inclusion Services
Out of County - 2 new placements, increased provisions and a new 8 week assessment have

°® been partially offset by 2 placements ending. 0.022
Subtotal: Inclusion Services 0.022
Minor variances of less than £0.025m
e Primary School Services (0.010)
¢ Secondary Schaoal Services (0.007)
e Access - School Provision (0.012)
o Adult & Community Education (0.003)
« Community Centres 0.001
» Youth Justice Service 0.002
e Youth & Community Service (0.001)
o Commissioning & Performance - Business Support 0.003
e School Management Information 0.008
Total minor variances of less than £0.025m (0.019)
Total: Education & Youth 0.003
People & Resources
Minor varlances of less than £0.025m
« HR&OD (0.004)
o Corporate Finance 0.014
Total minor variances of less than £0.025m 0.010
Total: People & Resources
Governance
Procurement
o The efficiency relating to income from charging suppliers will not be achieved this financia! year. 0.116
Subtotal: Procurement 0.116
Minor variances of less than £0.025m
s Legal Services 0.013
= Democratic Services (0.014)
o Internal Audit (0.002)
¢ Records Management (0.003)
Total minor variances of less than £0.025m {0.006)
Total: Governance 0.110
Organisational Change
Valuation & Estates
The shortfall in rental income from the Gaz du France site is to be met through in year savings,
®* which previously were to be met through Reserves . 0.143

Suh I Valuation & E

Property Design & Consultancy
« Additional design fees over budgeted income target achieved. (0.037)

Subtotal: Property Design & Consultancy

Facilities
= £0.023m additional income achieved from increase in school meals. (0.023)

Minor variances of less than £0.025m

e Public Libraries & Arts, Culture & Events 0.003

o Leisure Services (0.001)

o Facilities (0.007)
Total minor variances of less than £0.025m 0.078
Total: Organisational Change 0.078

Chief Executive

Minor variances of less than £0.025m
o Minor variances less than £0.025m (0.004)

Total: Chief Executive {0.004)

Page 59



Central & Corporate Finance

e Coroners Fees
s Projected under-recovery of contribution to pension fund
o Euticals Running Costs
* Matrix Rebates
e Minor variances
Total: Central & Corporate Finance

Total Changes

Page 60

0.031
0.178
(0.044)
(0.020)
(0.013)
0.132
0.132

Appendix 1



‘sanssaid
ssaippe O} 8JABS Ul aseymase  spuadssapun
asn 0} sjuawisnipe juawubyeas 126png puswwosay

‘sainssaid
ssaJppe 0} 3JAIBS Ul 2IBYMaIs|3  spuadsiapun
asn 0} sjuawisnipe yuswubjeas 126png puawwosay

"S30IAIBS JOYI0
pue ales Ae@ UIYIM WELO'03 18U B 0} JUNOWE S3OUBLIBA JOUIW JaYIQ
19y30

‘(s201nu9g pajenbsy pue $a2IN0sSay)
JusLWa|qesy *g 9XEJU| WO} SBNIED0T OJUl paligjsuel) sey yolum wes)
YoM [E100S [eldsoH auy) 0} Bunejas ((61.1°03) JO [e10) B SBPNOUl YdIym
‘S3IDUBDRA JB)JOAN [BI00S 0} anp Buyjers 0} sajeal yaiym (wiypg 03) Jo
puadsiapun pajoafoid |Bj0) B S| 218y ‘SWea) Sa))i|es0T Bae AU} UM
uoddns |euoissajosd aul s puadsiapun Juesiylubis Jo eale Jayunj y
yoddng Jeuoissajoid

‘Buisinu aa1} Joj (woyQ'03) Buipnoul 196png anoge
awooul Ul Saseasoul Jayuny snid ‘awodul pajelal Auadoud Jo [9As] ay) Ul
asealoul ue 0) anp (Wwee'03) JO puadsiapun ue ‘siapircid awoy aied
0} sjuawAded uo (welg03) Jo puadsiepun ue ‘sapn|aul Ydiym ‘aled
|lenuspisal uo (wgs/ 03) jo puadsiapun payosfoud e Agq Jasyo uey)
aJow Buraq si ajed Aeqoiwoq uo puadsiano pajaafoud ueayubis ay |

ale? |enuapIsay

-abexyoed xa)dwoo auo jo uonessad ay) Ag pasuanyu) Ajped
uaaq Sey Yolym ‘w/£g°03 40 uopisad WNANO GL/y L0 Y} Wolj paonpal
Aueoyubis sey yoiym wipp 03 S1 puadsiono pajoaloid Jo [9A9)
wauno ay| ‘epuswap yum ajdoad jo sisquinu Buiseasour pue pasu
10 Auxajdwon pasealoul ‘ayoid onersowsp BuilBueys sy yuawsigeal
1sed |nyssanons Bumojjoy aoinas ayy 0} Buuinial syusio AQ pasusnpjul
Buileq s s yoym ‘asen Aeqoiwoq s! ainssaud jJo ease uew
ay] ‘eaie sIUy} ul saosueueAa Bunesuadwods yuesyubls swos ase asay |

(seiieo0)

asen Aeipowoq|(02y°0) (1£5°0) E14d%4% L19VL swea] A)ed0
S39)AJ3G [e1208
(wiz) (w3) {(w3) (w3)
paitnbay uoyoy aoueuep Jofey jo asne) Mu.“ﬂ._.._uuc\‘, ajueleA uM._«“a#m%n_ wwwﬂ,:aﬂ L LITVETS

Z xipusddy

AHYWAINS - 0L HLNOW

Page 61



*SUNO2 40 uosud woyy 3dnou
LOys je Sspuewsap pue siaqunu juald ul sabueyd

(CRITVELS
asnsIy soueisqng
B yleay |ejuaiy)

0} anp Aymeion [ejusjod - malaal Japun dasy '91/5102 o} sebesjoed aieo yuaund spayay|((gLL'0)  [(0zL'0)  [/6L°0 L1E0 }196png oisuaio4
(aoinuag
asnsiyy aouesqnsg
2 Y)eaH |ejuay)
's1500 abeyoed mau jeuonippe aa1nuag Aeyowoq
‘malnal Jopun deay|apisbuoje  sabeyoed Aenoiwog pue  [BRuSpiSy Ul Sasealdu]|Zgl 0 2810 G66°0 €180 pue jenuapisay
*S)S09 ADBOOADE JO UOHEDO||Ba)
pue |Sad 01 1sod YOAA |BID0S B J0) SIS0D JO Jojsuel) AQ 19syo sem (s@a1nag
puadsiano ay} jo awos Q| pouad Jy “yeis Aouabe jo asn Buipnjoul Apqesig) voddng
‘MaInal Japun deay|'s)soo saakojdwe uo sainsseid 0} anp Ajuiew si puadsiano siyl|y60°0 2200 9ze'0 ¥0£°0 aAljensIuIwpy
*S3WOo2)N0
pasinal pue malnal 3dlAas Bumolioy paonpas Apueoyiubis usaq
MOU SABY S9SN 3DIAJDS 1O} S)SOD Pajoadxa JO SWIS) Ul SIUSWHIWWOD (seomuasg Ayjigesiq)
SNOIABI4 "SJUDID UOHISUBJ} [BUONIPPE/MBU 10) JUSWILLLIOD P3SIA3) ao1nuas Ayjigesig pue
‘M3IA3) Japun daay|e sapnjoul Q| poudd ‘9L/SLOZ Jo) sebexoed aied juaund S}O9AY|YEL'D (e8z°0) 910¢ 6622 S)NpYy 3|qetsunA
"gny BuluoissIwWwoY Jaulio) Ay} AQ maiaal Buimoijo)
Japincid @91A19S B J0J B)el By} Ul asealoul pajepyoeq e jo AJaaodal
10} WOEZ 03 JO Jopincid [BUIBIXS Ue WOl WIed B 0} Sajejas puadsiano
8y} uo sousanyul Jayuny Yy 'siased Aojdwe oym si1asn SIIAIBS U0j
sjuswAed aosueinsul Ayjige) JaAojdwa puny o) suonebijgo Joj pue siasn
so1ues 0] sjuswAed ay) abeuew o} papaau Auoeded uonessiuiwpe
‘sainssaid|jeuonippe au} o) uones ul sl Juswse Bulewsas ayj Aduslole (sao1uas Anjigesia)
SSeIppE 0} 3JAUSS Ul a1aymas|d  spuadsiapunyo suo e se ajelodio) pue [enua) o (47)) puny BuinT uapuadapui sa01nu8g pajenbay
asn 0} sjuaw)snipe juawubieal 196png puswwoday (ayl o) uonejal ur 186pnq Jo Jaysuel) syl Bunoajal mou S| 9oIALaS SIUL [6SL°0 96€°0 GEO'SL 6£2°SL Y S22IN0SaY
‘gouapuadapul (yusws|qeay
a;len yyesH Bunnuguop Bunowoid SdIA1I9S  JaylouB 0} U210 pue ayeju|)
"Malnal Japun dasd|ue jJo uoneoojeal ay) o} anp Ajulew s puads sapun pajosfoid ayy |(290°0) (590°0) yLy'0 6.0 S92IAIBG Jusw|qeay
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
6 Yiuow wnyno 19bpng
paiinbay uonoy soueuep sofel Jo asned soUBLIEA soueuep perofoid pesimey ERITVETS

Z Xipuaddy

AYVYWNNS - 0L HLNOW

Page 62



‘salouaIdYe ajqissod
pue Buueid ainny wioul |IM puB pPaISPISUOD

‘slaleo ay}
10} @suemojie BuloBuo ue Joeie Ajgeueau) Yolym siaplo diysueipiens)
|eioadS pue 2ouspisey 40} SJ9PIO UNOD Jo sequinu  Buisessoul

Buldq SI UoIym JO BWOJN0 8y} ‘udeuspun|ay) o} anp OS[E S! SIYl JO UBd "83IAIS 3y} UIYIM sjuswade|d aieo 1a)so) (s@21/49G s,uBIpIUD)
usaq sey wea| Juawsadeld AjWES 8y} JO MBIABI V(30 Jaquinu 3y} ul asealoul Ue Jo }nsal e S| puadsisAo wgse 03 dYL|iyZ 0 8620 S8z 1222 juswade|d Ajiwed
(e1eba166e)
My s801) Je Juang siaied SIDMIN e Buipuny Joj pajesoje ussq aaey S0UBLEA S32IN0SAY
‘JUaLIND3J 8q 0} pajoadxa 10U JNQ MBIABS 0} SNUNUOY) |WSEN 03 JO SISOD (euonippe ‘0l pouad 1y "S8JOUBMBA Joulw SNOUBA|0ZL 0 2910 085¢ 8Ly'Z 9 yuswdojaaaq Jayl0
‘palinba.
[9A3| 3y} 0} dn do} 0} S30IAIBS |BID0S UIYIM 1aymas| wol) 18bpng ayl
ubijea. 0} alojaiay) Auessaoau aq (M ) (dAMDIS) Wels awwesboid
Juawdojana(g 92I0POA\ BJeD [BI00S By} Joj suompuod juelb
ay) J9aw 0} palinbal [aAs| ayl mojaq us|je) sey 1a6png ay) Jo Juswale
'sainssald|Buipuny yojew a8y} dousnbasuod B Sy ‘suofleuiuuslep HAMHAT
sselppe 0] 99198 Ul 3Jaymasia  spuadsiapun|pue sawodno smeys abulg Jo 1oedwi psuiqwod auy) Jo asuanbasuod
asn 0) syusunsnipe juswubijeal 196png puswwodayle se paonpas Ajeinjeu sey adas siy) Joy 18bpng aseq ayl|gLL 0 2010 $61°0 P00 Bujuies)
‘sainssasd awoou|
SSaippe 0} BJ0IASS Ul aIBYmas|d  spuadsiapun yaam Jad Qg3 0) Joam Jad gG3F woly deds abieyd wnwixew Aojjod Buibieyn
asn 0} syuswysnipe juswubieas 1o6png puswiwosay|ayy jo [9A3] Byl ul JUBWWIBADS USIA AQ 8seasoul ue Jo Joedw||(81Z°0) (802°0) (188°1) (g29°1) - 532)AJBG SSaulsng
"g|doad Jap|O 10} uonisod wnpno pajoaloxd (s)eba1668E)
JUa2LN9 83U} UO Paseq palinbal Jou S| SOAISSAI WOJ) UMOP umeip 3q S3DUBLEA S}NPY
‘JusNJaJ aq 0} pajoadxa Jou Jng MalAal 0} snunuosy|Buipuny ajge(ieae |equalod ayy ‘gL pouad )y "SaduBLEA Joulw snoueA|(2/0°0) 200 Se0'LL LLOLL 10§ S39IBS JBYI0
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
6 YIuoiy wnyno 18fpng
pasnbay uonoy asueyueA Jofey Jo asned soueLEA aJuelLeA porsfoid posiAey ELITVETS

Z Xipusddy

AYVAWNS - 0L HINOW

Page 63



LL0°0 (9g0°0) G66°8S 1€0°6S S391AI8G [190S {€)0)
(e1e624668)
S90UBLEBA UBIPIIUD
"JUa1INJaJ aq 0} pajoadxa Jou JNg M3IA3L 0} BNUNUOYD "S9oUBLIEA JOUIW SNOUBA| €90°0 €200 €€5C ost'e 10} S321MBS JBYI0
sjuaLWwade|d
"MBIABI Japun dasy| "91/510Z Jo} sebesjoed aseo Jusund spayey|(gLz’0)  [(002'0)  |9lzZ'E 9lv'E Aunogd JoInQ
‘wea) uoluaniaiu) Ajiwe- ayy uyum Buiyels uo puadsispun
weoubls e Buipnppul ‘poddng |BUOISS8)0Id SIS S,UBIPIYD
uiyim alaymasie (w|go'03) Jo spuadsiepun jeu Bumesyo ae
alayy ‘salouesea o) anp sjebpnq Aed jsuiebe spuadsiopun Buiasyo
aWOS YIM ‘Wwop( 03 Wodsuely pue wggO 03 Jo siopiaoid [Buselxe
o0} siuawAed uiyum sainssaid 0} anp st syl (1SYAD) wes) poddng
s)npy BunoA pue s,ualp|iyD au o} SSJejR) Yolym wsgQ 03 Jo ainssaid
Joyuny e st assy] ‘wodas Bupoyuow 186png 2 yuop ay) Buuspisuod
uaym Jauigqe) Aq panoidde se enssal Aouabuiuods ay) woly wooL 03
jo uopeosojje ue jo Aem Aq pajebmw Aped usaq sey puadsiano
‘sainssald|siy] "921AI8S BU) JO EaJe SIY) UIyIm s)sU Aoy ssauppe 0} yels Aojdap
ssalppe 0} 901AI8S Ul 2JBymasje spuadsiapun|o} paau ay} 0} aNp S| YoIym ‘wes) Juawssassy B AINQ syl ulyIm s)soo
asn 0] syuswysnipe yuswubieas 126png puswwooay |Aed Aousbe uo wepy| 03 JO puadsiono pajosiosd paonpal e s 819y| (SZL°0 L0 P16 166'% poddng [euoissajold
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
21inbax uo 6 Yyjuopy wnyno 18bpng
pasinbay uonoy asueuep Joley Jo asne) soueLeA asueUeA peroofoid posiney ELITNETS

Z xipuaddy

AYVINNNS - 0L HLNOW

Page 64



(1z5°0)

{L19°0)

1921

[43:X43

asudisjug
2 Aunwwoy [ejoL

"M3IARJ pUB JOJIUOW 0} BNURUOD

‘w/ego'o3 o
Sa0UBLIBA JOUIW JAYIO 9102 UdJe AQ a)is Uo aq yjoq |IIm Yoiym Aenpd
S,Ueuuo) ‘|ooyoS asSnNOH WoISND pue jull4 ‘SHIeAN SUl U0 Sawsyos
10 Juawdojanap ualpadxa ay) pauoddns sey ainyipuadxa siy] -adedg
BuiA] saiepn uim Juswaalby [eba Buiyoly JaAQ ay) Jo wswdojaasp
ayl upm plemioy anow 0} {dYVHS) swweibold uonesausboy
pue Buisnoy oibalens 8yl ajgeus 0} WGEN03 JO aunupuadx]

¥90°0

[44 %Y

¥61°0

¢l00

sawwesboid
BuisnoH

abueyo o1 APy
Alybly aue seale asay) se A[9S0[o JO}UOW 0} SNURUOD

-Jeak ay} Jnoybnouyy
aie suoposford pue 3[ne|joA

"(w/Z0°03) Jo seouURMEA JoUIW JBYIO (WOE0°03) dMA
wouy Buipuny susping MaN [BUOHIPPY "WQSE 03 O jIBjHoys pajabpng
Apisqng yeuag BuisnoH ‘(WEEE'03) 2WayoS uononpay xel [1ounod
ay} Jo} uoisiaoxd pajebpng ay) uo puadsiapun pajosioid (WSO 03)
sBuines Buiyelg "pajewnsa Ajenul ueyy Jaybiy (WLeZ03) 18 spuels
Ajuaund pung UONDRI0D Xel [1PUNo) 8yl uo snidins pajedidiuy

{88€°0)

(6¥v°0)

[4: 1%

1€9°0L

sjysuag 3 sanuUaAay

M3IABI PUE JOJUOW O} BNURUOT)

(W90 03) SadueleA Joulw JayiQ (wg0 03) ABajens g uonessuabay
BuIsNoH ul $)$09 J0 uonesiiended Jayun4 "Sjel awes ay) Je Pasealdu)
j0u aAey sableyo asaym ‘Jeah yoea uopepul yum aul ur Buiseasou
sjobie) awooul 0} anp sjayew ul WgEQ03F JO |[BJHOYS pajewnsy

¥S0°0

cloo

2950

0SS0

uonesauabay

"MBIARJ PUE JO)UOW O} SNURUOTD

"(w200°03) Jo saoueLeA
Joulw JaylQ -e@oueg Joddng uonepowwoddy paseg Ajunwiwo)
ay} Jo Joadsal ul (WL 03) 4o sbuines ‘wgsQ 03 wawdinba asedse)
J0 Juawainoold ‘W90 03 Aq pajedidiue UBY) JOMO] SWODU] SIS L

Y

(ze0°0)

{811°0)

(980°0)

Buisnop
pund |1ouno)

‘M3IABS pUB JOJIUOW 0} BNURUOTD

*(w1p0"03) sedUELEA JoUIW JBUYID (WYZ0'03)
puadsispun JeaA-ul pieoquoums (WD 03) uoisiaoud  @oIMIBS
sjosuuo) aNysiu4 ayl uo puadsispun (Wep0'03) puadsispun
jeuopippe  sajua) Awnwwo)  (Wwye003) | UONEPOWIWOIDY
ssgjawoH jo 10adsas ul paypuapl  Buines ueak-ul  [BuOlIpPY

{(892°0)

{¥92°0)

'l

S0L'L

S90S
Buisno g Jawoisny

asudiajug
w» Hunwwon

paainbay uopoy

asueueA Jofep Jo asnen

(w3)
6 UluoK

aouepeA

(wz)
sauepeA

(w3)
wnpno

pajasfoid

(w3)
3ebpng
posiAey

ESTVETS

Z Xipusddy

AHVAINNS - 0L HINOW

Page 65



‘M3IABJ pUE J0)UOW O} SNURUOD

‘abuajjeyd JusWHWLWOoD
uswa|dw) pue sao1nuas g saiiddng Jojuopy

‘A|Buipsoooe suonaaioid puawe pue
91/510z noybnoiyy Ajgso|d 1oxiew BuyoaAsal soiuop

“J9yoRI |

Aousplyg pleog awweiboid ybnoiyy pspoday

“J9¥oes |

Aouapyyg pieog awwelbold ybnoay pauoday

“uswabuele Juswabeuew Mau pue S(|om UoNOBIIXD

‘GLIL0/LE
WoJ) pasead yaym sajesyiua uondwaxg AAaT ayl Jo [emelpyim auyy
0} anp me| ul abueys e o} anp spun; {euolppe Bulsanbai JojoenuOD
a)sem pooj 3yl "alsep pood gnH IN 01 Bunejes aseasour Jo 0L

‘Yoleisie
ay o} ybnouyy ¥y 3 Jo sebeuuo) Juaw)eas) s)Sem pajew}ss Ul asealdul
pue aseyond juswdinbs pue s)s09 Buiylo|s aansajoid ‘B8NS DHH
piayusais) 1e sjpaoys Buipeo] Jo any 4o} WOP'0F JO SISOD |euonIppY

'gL0z Aenuep [uUn pjayuasis) je san|ioe) bunsodwod
ay) Buisn aq lou m Asyy se (19B6png wQ9p'03 Isuiebe |ejuoys
wQoso'03) DO eaysybiquag wody isodwod oy 91-GL0Z W WOL003
J0 anp awooul Jeak ped "wQEE'03 Senjea ajes a|Ad-a1 Bunemonyy
yim pouad sjejon e o} anp jasetu Bulpkoas ayy ul Buiasiyoe sapun

‘WIGZO 03 ulg 8)sem puodas Joj abieyd Jo uonoNposul pue woso 03
SIOUIBIUOD BJSBM J0) 3DIAJ9S AIAllep 4O uonejuawajdw) padeeq

‘w9103 jo Aouaioiys pajabpnq ay) uo
|lesdoys pajosiold [B)0) B Ul JNsad [|im S8YIS Julld pue Aenp s yeuuo) je
sew Bunesado mau Jo uononponul pajoadxa uey) Jaje| ay) 0) sabueys
‘uolyppe u| ‘asuad BuipAoas adoH jo ainsold pasodosd sy 0) uolea)
Ul USXEUapUN UOIEYNSUCD pue pasapisuod Buleq ale suondo Jayund

‘wgoL o3
1B pajBLLISS MOU S| uonoenxa seb Jo sjans) Bunenion|) pue umopyealq

uondsjlod
21SeM B |esodsig
2)SeM - 9duBWIOHSd

mau  |eisuiepesBidn 0] JuswisaAul 10} |enusiodfiuswidinba Bumojioy souilbus sebf woyy ssjes Aouj0a@ PadNPaY|£88°0 0060 2lvl 2169 9 s301U9G Augj|iouy
uopepodsuel]
P 8uIIS)PANG
(w3) (w3) (ws3) (w3)
6 Yiuow wnyno 1ebpng
pasnbay uonoy asueueA Jolel jo asne) soueLEA asueueA pejafoid pesiney ELJTNETS

AYVINNNS - 0L HLNOW

Page 66



uopjepodsues]

1680 8060 8¥E'6C 0v¥'8Z 9 9US2S)9ANG [€I0]
saoueleA JBYJo
"MBIABI 0] 8NUUC) ‘aoueleA ON|(000°0 0000 16L°0 L6L°0 - lomaN AemyBiH
"YaJe ISLE SY) 0) anuBuo2 susajed Jayjeam Juand
‘saunbiy [y aoueuslUBW Jajum ulyum (w90 03) Jo pusdsispun [enualod € S|
Buuoyuow a3y} ul pasucdar Apuaund aosueueA ON|alay) ‘glL0g Aenigad jo pua ay) o} dn ssjuim sbelaae mojsq suy) o) anQg
‘sabieyoal Je)s [RUOHIPPE PUB 3I0M P3)E[S. JaJUIM O
's1507) a9ko|dw3 Jopuoly [uoisuesy Buimojjoy suonesado HIOAA PUNOIS) 10} JUSUNILULLIOD PaJNpay
w003 40 Aousioiya auy Ul jleIoys
"19yoRJ ) |palewnsa ue Ul JNsad M Uoiym 910z Auenuer is| aq o) pajedionue
Aousioyyg pleog swwelBoig ybnosyy papoday|mou si spiepuels Buisuesio psanpal ayy jo uopejuswsidun syj
JaoRlL ‘wOEg0'03 Jo llesoys 1au JomaN
Aousiolyg plieog swweiboid ybnosy papodsy|e ul Buninsas aowues Bumno sseib jo uonesiiewsaxa Ny ay) ul Aeled|0.0°0 850°0 9%/ voy'2 9 ABajens sAemybiH
SaDUBLIBA
JayoeiL Jayjo - sosibon
Aousioyy preog awweibolrd ybnosyy pspodsy "$90uBHBA JOUIN|{£G0°0) (090'0) 0£S'8 0658 '3 uoepodsues |
*sajoIyaA Jo abesn juaioiye alow pue 198]4 - S90S
"MalAB1 0} anunuo) [saoud jany Bupnpal o} anp ‘s}so2 BNy [enuue Ul uononpal pajoaloid|{260°0) (6£0°0) 62V 808V 20Inosay g soysibo]
SaJUBLEA
Jayoel] JBYI0 - @ouBWIONad
Aousiolyy pleog swwesboid ybnosyy papoday "saoueueA JOUIN|(S00'0)  [{(0L0'0) 68270 6620 '8 S901AIBG AUB|jIouyY
pUETTELIo T |
g Bunjed
‘AjBuipsoooe suonoafoid *Auno) au ssoloe sabieyd Bupped sed jo uonejuawsiduw - aouewIOopad
puswe pue Ajasoj0 awoou| Bupped Jen toyuop|ayl ul sAejap Bumoljoy siesodoid Buluueld ssauisng wol) [[BJHOYS|660°0 6600 /10 900 9 S90S Ale||Iouy
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
6 Yyuow winynQ 18b6png
paiinbay uopoy asueuep Jofey jJo asned) SoustIEN asuepep pojosfoid pesinoy CLTTNETS

ZXipuaddy

AHVWAINS - 0L HLNOW

Page 67



juswuoIAU]

[44X") Lo LES'S 0Zy's ' Bujuueld |e30L

*ajqIssod asaym aAOWaL/RNPaL S3IOUBLIBA JBY)O JO

pue ainjipuadxs PaWWOD JONUOW 0} SNUNUOD ‘oljojuod ay) ssosoe abuajieyd juawywwod panuiuo) [(Z+0°0) (6v0°0) 280 180°€ a)ebaibby oijojuod

saoueUeA

Jayyo jo ajebalbby

"M3IABI 0} BNUNUOD ‘oljojpiod ay) ssouoe abuajjeyo JuawWWod panuiuod [{(y10°0) (01L0°0) AN £EL0 - JuawdojaaaQy
‘'sapuaIdle
Buluuelqd sseuisng ul pejosyas pue GLoz ‘judy Joj pssodoud

‘pasojuow |Ajjleuibuo sem siyL |iig (sajepn) Buluue|d ayy japun GL0g 42goj2Q0 Jun Juswaoiouy

Alosolo aq | S|PAs| awoou] 894 bBumueld|vgL Aq paseasou Buieq jou ses) uonealiddy Buiuueld woyy jejHoYS(621 0 orLo 1000 (g€ 0) 9 |onuo) Buluueld

ajqissod alaym aAowal/aonpal -ainypuadxa pajoafoid aininj Jo anjeA/|aAs| 8y} S30UBLEBA Jayjo JO

pue ainypuadxa PapIWIWOD Jowuow O} anuhuo)|Buonpal ul INySsa0oNSs USaq sey abus|eyd uswWiWWod ‘gL pouad W|(81L0°0) (££0°0) 8L setL 2)ebaibby - ssauisng
*11/910Z Wwolj 9sean [im *801Aas ay) uiyim Bujuiews.

Buipuny |ej0) s awubleal 126png enusjod ybnosyyiabiey awodu) sy pue §Loz Jeqwiateq ul Buipus gD WeYxaIMm eqjaq

19b18) BwWosu| uels) aonpal 0} shem ayebinsaaul(yim diysssuped sy ur Buginsas ‘Buipung el9 YY43a PIINPad|p0'0 700 010 9z10 2 yjeaH [ewiuy

‘suonoafoid sadueLEA

a|qissod aiaym sAOWSI/aoNpal|awooul payepdn pue ainipuadxe pejoslosd aininy JO SNIBAASAS| BU} 1830 jo ojebalbby

pue ainypuadxs paRIUWOD Jopuow O} anuyuod|Budnpal ul |yssaoans usaq sey abus|ieyo JusWwWWOoD ‘0l poliad IV|200°0 1200 ¥0.°0 €890 - Ayunwwo)
‘g)eudoidde se Juswjwwod ‘uoysod Buinoidwi 1yBiis e a1eolpul pua Jeak

awooul 1snipe pue papiaoid S82IAISS JO [9A8] JOJUO |[e1oueuy o} suoidaloid ay) pue PaAiadal 894 JO [9A3] 8Y) ‘0L PoUad v |(Z200°0) (110°0) (600°0) 2000 Buisuaoi

‘sjeudoidde se JusupwWwoD usplepn

awoouj isnfpe pue papirosd SBDIAISS JO [9A3] JOYUO ‘uoisod Buioueuy J1as ay} ul ||ejUoyS [BRuslod|8L0"0 €100 9600 €700 Boq |o5uog 1sad

uswuosAug

w Bupuue)d

(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
6 Yjuoy wnyno 18bpng
pasinbay uonoy aoueue Jolew jo asne) soueLEn 92UBUEBA pejosfoid pesiAey ERITNETS

Z Xipuaddy

AYVYAWNS - 0L HINOW

Page 68



000°0 000°0 £LT'V8 £LTV8 sjooyss [ejol
"M3IA3I 0] aNuUjuo) ‘ajuellep ON|000°0 0000 0E6'E 0£6°E S92IAIG UOISN|dU|
uoneanp3 Buinuguo)
"M3IA3M 0) aNURU0D ‘aoueleA ON{000°0 0000 L GE ¥v.L'GE B 61-¢| 'AUBpUODI]
uoneonp3 sieaA
"M3IAB) 0} BNUUOD ‘aJueliep ON|000°0 0000 665 v¥ 6651 Ane3 g Aewud
sjooyas
§INoA
(Loo’0) |Z000 (74% 4" LZLrel % uoneanpg jgjo)
"0ljoJIOd YINOA PUE uoyeanp3 Wwea| uopewuoju| g
‘M3IAB) O} anunuoD |upm sunonuisay juswebeuely Joiuas e Bumojo) sBuines Aouedsea|(/y00) (6£0°0) €510 2610 wswabeuepy [0oyssg
"01]0JHOd YINOA pue uonesnpy aoueuwopad
‘malnal 0) anunuo) (uum ainjonisay juswsbeueyy Jouag e Bummojioy sBuines Asuedsep|(6£0°0) (9£0°0) oLe0 9pE'0 % BuluoissIWwWoD
"MBIASI 0} aNujuod "S30UBLEA JOUIN|(200°0) {€00°0) EEV’L 9Et’L S82IAJBS UINOA
“MBIAal 0] anuuo) ‘@dueleA ON{000°0 0000 9610 961°0 s|ooyog Amuad Istg
(uoisinoid g Buuuelq
*MBIAB] 0} aNunuoD ‘SWiejo aouelnsu| Joj papodal sBulAes Sapnjoul - SSOUBLBA JOUIN | (20°0) (9€0°0) 2P0 8050 Jo0Yy9g) $S300Y
‘puewwap Jo Ayjigerdipaldun pue sjuswaseld
1s00 ybiy Jo) [eyusjod By} pue oSS BY) JO BJMEU B|BIOA By}
‘MalABl 0) anunuo) (o) anp Ajoyine ay) o) ysu Jo ease ue ase sjuawsde(d Aunod Jo INO|60L°0 1€1°0 G651 Yoy . S82IAIBG UOISN|oU|
uoneonp3 Buinunuo)
"M3IAR) 0} Bnunuo) “SaouBLIBA J0UIN| 2000 0000 L1l LLL') B 6L+1 ‘Aiepuooag
uoIBONP SIBBA
"M3IARI 0} BNURUOY "saoueueA JOUiN|(500°0)  |(510°0)  [€58°0 8980 Aued g Alewud
YINoA g uogeonpy
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
pasinbay uopoy aoueuep Jofey Jo asne) Mo—._hﬂ__w&, aJueUep u.““«_ﬂwn_ www_ﬂ:wm_ CLITNETS

Page 69

Z xipusddy

AIVANWNS - 0L HLINOW



£€L0 £ve o 856'8 SLL'8 85UBUIBACD [BI0L
"Jua.INJaJ 8q 0} Pajoadxa jou S| puadsienQ ‘SaouBMEA JOUIN|820°0 8200 vSL'p (YA 121
uawabeuep
"Jualindal aq 0) pajoadxa jou s| puadsianQ ‘saoueueA JOUIN| 2100 100 8810 V210 SpI029Y
"Jua.Indai aq 0} pajaadxa jou S| pusdsiapun ‘saouelep 1ouln|(L£0°0) (2£0°0) €020 ovL 0 poddng ssauisng
‘WZ 1003 4O SaduBLeA Joulw Os|e pue g1/GLog Ulyum Wyl L'03
“JusNJ3J aq 0} pajaadxa jou S| puadsianp|jo Aousidue Ue Jo JuSWBASIYDEe-UOU By} O} anp SI puadsiano sIL(ZL00 8210 992'0 8c1L0 juswaind0id
"Jua.noal 8q 0} pajoadxa jou S| puadsiapun ‘sagueueA Joun|(€00'0)  [(G00°0)  [LL¥0 9Ly 0 UPNY [BuB|
‘SaouBleA Joulw o} anp si (W9zQ'03)
"jeak|jo puadsispun uy 196png GL/rLOZ BYl ulyum paaibe sem yoym
1XaU [N} Ul paAsIyae aq 0} paoadxa si Adusiowe ay | wgl 1L°03F Jo Aouaioye ue Buiaaiyoe ul Aejep e 0} anp si puadsiano au] (860°0 ¥80°0 G661 L6 L $30|1AI8S dfjeIOoWag
‘Jualindal aq 0) pajoadxa Jou S| puadsianQ ‘S9OUBLBA JOUIN|BL00 1€0°0 190 0L9'0 sao1nag |eban
2IUBUIIA0Y)
S32UN0SY
(vrro)  [(voL0)  [soOS'¥ 609 =g aydoad ejoL
‘w003
JO saoueleA Joulw aie asByl (Wygl'03) JO spusdsispun a2I0pHOM
-Ajuo Jeak-ul ase spuadsiapun a21opop) Jeak 1xau{liesodway Aq 1esyo Bulaq st siy) WYL 03 JO |[BJHOYS B Yim panaiyde
IIN} Ul pansiyoe aq o) pajoadxe ale sapuaoye ayl jAlelued Buleq se papodas Buleq si Aousiois 196pnq 91L/510Z V|(660°0) (s80°0) 1822 99¢'2 adueul{ aesodio)
(W] 1.0°03) 0 S@2UBLEA JOUIW BJE B8y ]
(WG L°03) 40 spuadsiapun aaioppiom Aq Jasyo Buiaq sie spuadsiano
9S8yl "WOE0'03 JO SJemyos pue wilQ0F jo ddnag Bullegsig g
-Aluo Jeak-ul ale spuadsiapun a2JOPUOAN "JeaA 1Xau|aInso|Isig ay) Uo pusdsiaAo Ue Si aJay) Siyl 0} UOHIPPE U| "3|qeAsiyde
[iny ul paAaIyoe aq o) pajoadxa ale sajoualoye ayjfiou se papodas Buieq s1 wegpL 03 jo Aousoye 196png gL/sL0e V|(S100)  |(6L00)  |veee £ve'e QoRyH
s22.nosay g ajdoayd
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
6 YJuo wnyno 19bpng
pasinbay uonoy aoueueA Jofey jo asne) souBLIEA 92UBUBA peiosfoid pesiAey CRITNETS

Z xipuaddy

AYVWANNS - 0L HLNOW

Page 70



abueysn

(615°0) |(Lwv0) [SOL6 995°6 JeuonesiuebiQ |ejoL
‘papJeme sjoenuod Buiueald mau o) anp pajediogue awooul
jeuonippe (WeL0'03F) WEdeA Ajuanino si eyl jsod sopea wea] au
woyy sbuines Aejes (w| |0'03) "S[eaw [00Yds ul 3xeldn paseaioul Loy
"mM3]A31 0} anUNUOD [1oB1e) swooul aaoge pue Jaao pajedioiue Bwodul jeuolippe (We60°03)|(660°0) (6210 GZs'lL ¥59°L S80IAIBS salljioe
‘M3IA2I 0} BNUNUOD ‘aoueleA oN|000°0 0000 0000 0000 saonuag Bupasulbug
(WZ10°03) Jo SaouBLBA Joulw JBYIO ‘Buuoiuol
Aiojniels uo puadsiapun (wgzo 03F) ‘Buipuny aaneusaye ybnosyy Jow
uaaq sey 3o1Jo Aenp s,Ueuuo) Jo uonljowap ayy o} Bunejd (wgL003)
‘/1/91 oj0 s)s00 pajoalold ‘paunuspl usaq aney Jabie) awooul pejebpng AdUEB)NSU0)
puadsiapun ay} JO 8wos pJemio) Aued o} 1sanbay[ayl Jaao soay adsueusjuiely @ ubisag ul (wQQZ03) leuomppe uy|(8/Z°0) (s1£°0) v1E2 629°¢C g ubiseq Apadoid
(WE0003) JO S8dUBLEA JOUIW JAYIO “SaAIssal 4bnoay) 1w aq
0} 6ulob Ajsnoinaid sem ||efuoys siU) ‘Wey L 03 S)IS sduelq Np Zzeo ay}
WI0J) BWI0DUI JUDJ Ul JlBJUOYS B AQ 18SHO S) SIY| "Ba 30IAIRS SIU) UIYIMm
"M3JAR) 0} aNUNUOD |sases|al Je)s Buimolio) paaaiyoe (WGE | 03) Jo saouae aoJopoM |(brL0)  [(100°0)  |(ri8'0) (£18°0) Sajels3 g uoneniep
*M3IABI 0} BNUiUoD ‘aoueueA ON 0000 0000 8100 8100 sjassy Ayunwwod)
(wggQ 03) Jo sbuines 1s0o sayddns
‘MaIAB1 0} anunuo) |y sasiwaid Aq jasyo aunssaid swodul Nuu 22| apisead wWOL0'03{9L0°0 5100 586°C 0/6°€ S92IAIBG BINSIAT
"M3IAB] 0} SNURUOD "SaouBlBA JOUIN|(100°0) (100°0) 6520 0920 SaAlyaly Aunod
*M3IA3I 0} BNURUOD ‘saoueLBA JOUIN|Z00°0 2000 990°0 £90°0 321G SWN3SNA
S)uang
R AINN) ‘suy
"MalAal 0} anuuo) "s@oueueA JOUIN|(S10°0) (zLo'0) (47 ¥oL'L 'y Saueid algnd
abueys jeuonesiuebio
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
alinba 6 Yiuopy wning 18bpng
pasinbay uonoy aoueueA Jolfey jo asned soueLEA aJueuep peysfoid pesiney 99IA19G

Page 71

Z Xipuaddy

AHVYNNNS - 0L HLINOW



(vz10)  [(8L10) [606°C 180° S3ARN29X3 J9IUD [E10L
*SjusLWaIoU| paje|al souewlopad
10) pasnbas 18bpng ayy o) Bunes (wgpQ03) Jo puadsiopun
‘Ajuo seak-ul agjue si alsy] -(wgzo'03) jJo suawsaiby Buipung @100 ul uolaNpal

0] pajyoadxs ase (wgQl 03) Jo sbuines sakojdwa ay] |e osje pue {wgoL'03) jo sBulnes a2Jopyiom 0} anp si puadsiepun ay] [(y21°0) (821°0) 6062 180°¢C SaAN2aXJ JaIYD

S3ANN2IXT JBIYD

(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
6 Yiuo wnyng 196png
pasinbay uonoy asueueA Jofel jJo asne) souBLEA ajueueA pejosfoid pesiAey CLITNET

Z xipuaddy

AIVYWWNNS - 0L HLNOW

Page 72



(eve')  [(oriL)  |ivetose ISt'LST VLOL

aJueul4 ajesodso)

{og11)  [(voo'L) [egeee lgeee B [E23uaD jej0)
"MaIAa) Japun daayy (Wg10°03) Jo saouBLEBA JOUIN
‘a)Is YoI0ApuUes - Py S|eonn3 JauLo)
‘MaIAal J1apun deay|o) uone@s Ul WgsEe 03 JO SIS0 pajebpnqun ‘palwi awl / Yo auQ
"WOE0'03 Hels
Aousbe s$9| 0) anp PaAladal SWO0dU| JaMO| - SaJeqal xuepy (WEeg0'03)
sebieyn ueg sjelodiod o) uones ul Jeak ay) Jo sispenb sasy)
uo ableys ou panBday BOIUO UPNY SSIBAA UM MBIASL Japun S Siy}
‘Malnal Japun daay)| (wegn 03) 126png ueys Jamol aq o) pajedioiue aie S934 JPNY [euwa)x3
(wegL'03)
“M3IABJ O} BNUNUOY) [1aAB|IUN 10} MBIASY JUBY JO JNSal e se awodul pajosfoid ueyy JaybiH
(471 pung Buian
"M3IAB) 0} anunuos) [Juspuadapu| ay} 0} uoneial ul (WEOE 0F) SSIDUBIDYS Payuap! 4o 3UQ
-Jeal ul
‘suondo Jayjo Je Bupjoo| Ajualing|a|geaslyoeun pasapisuod WQOE 03 JO ADUSIOIYT 92I0PHOAA Palewns]
‘MajARl 0} aNuRUOD ‘W £0°03 JO puadsiano g1/510z parosfoid sivuoio)
*MaIAR) Japun daay ‘wg/ | '03 punj uoisuad o} uoNGUIUOD Jo AIaA02aI-Japun pajoalold
‘SuoiNQUIUo2
‘suondo|jeuoippe Jo S)s00  pajedipjjue ueyy Jamo| 0} anp (wZL6'03)
yuswubieal Jepisucy “suondp Bupueuly sleiodion(mainey |euemoy uoisuad (WsZ)'03) Jeak ueaund pue (wopbz03)
‘ABajenlg @oueuld WIa] WNIPay Jo Yed se malAsy|Jeak snolnaid wol) UOHBLU| pJEPUBIS UON pasnun Jo aoueeg
196pnq ay) ojul }ing S)S0D Jsasalu; woyy sbulaes wia) yoys ul Bupnsal
‘pauueid uey) Jaje| s aunypuadxa |eydes se ‘Jeak |eloueuly SIY} MOUOq
0} Paau ou S| 3Jay} ‘JBASMOH ‘w09 03 Ajglewixoidde jo salouaIe

‘uoneBiyw ajqissod|ul uononpas e o) sayenba siy) suondwnsse [eulbuo (e uo paseg ‘18s aoueuld

Joj uolisod |jesono Amuspl (M YD Jo malney |sem 1abpng ay) Jaye pabueyd Junowe juawspes ay) - Bupueuld vyH[(9gL L) (¥00°L) £Eee’Ce LECET gjelodio B [esjuad

adueuld

ajesodio] @ [enua)

(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
6 Yluoy wnynQ 196png
paiinbay uonoy asueuep Jofew jo asned souelEN 8oUBLIEA pejosfoid pesiasy CLITNETS

Z Xipuaddy

AYVYWANNS - 0L HLNOW

Page 73



Page 74



2015/16 Efficiencies Month 9 - Under or Over Achieved

Portfolio

People & Resources

Review of specialist finance functions to identify efficiencies in
process

Ensure continuation of grant maximisation opportunities
identified in 2014/15

Review of specialist human resources functions to identify
efficiencies in process

Total People & Resources

Governance
Procurement Supplier Charging

Central and Corporate Finance
Workforce efficiency proposal

Central Loans and Investment Review
Total Central & Corporate Finance

Social Services

Develop means testing approach for minor adaptations

Review model/costs contracts for catering

Rationalise the number of sites where In-House short term care
is provided

Develop a ‘progression’ model for Supported Living

Review commissioning with Action for Children

Regional approach to advocacy

Review and realign funding to voluntary sector

Total Social Services

Community & Enterprise

Close the personal answering service for main switchboard
telephone calls

Welfare Rights Team Review

Community Centres

Community Based Accommodation Support Service
Telecare Charging

Stopping sending remittance advices to Landlords
In-house bailiff service

Removal of Post Office as payment option

Review Single Person Discount

Total Community & Enterprise

Streetscene & Transportation

Introduce non-generic Streetscene roles (3 year plan)
Develop Energy Production at Landfill
Rationalise HRC Sites

Removing the Waste Containers delivery service
Introduce Charge for 2nd Garden Waste Bin

Car Parking Charges

Cancel Real Time Info System

Charge Maintenance of Bus Shelters

Review subsidised bus routes

Externalise grass cutting service

Reduced Street Lighting resource

Remove second grass cut for highway verges
Reduce Cleansing standards zero tolerance litter
Part night street lighting in residential areas
Winter Maintenance (Car Parks and standard)
Total Streetscene & Transportation

Planning & Environment

Staffing & Management Restructure (incl. all vacancies)
Staffing & Collaboration

Animal & Pest Control

Increased Planning Fees (15% WG increase)

Increase in number of Planning Applications

Additional elements of charging (discharge of conditions)
Total Planning & Environment

Total 2015/16 Budget Efficiencies
Total Projected 2015/16 Budget Efficiencies Underachieved
Total Projected 2015/16 Budget Efficiencies Achieved

. . . . {Under)/Over
Original Efficiency Revised Efficiency Achievement
2015/16 2015/16 2015/16
£(m) £(m) £(m)
0.170 0.166 (0.004)
0.100 0.066 (0.034)
0.105 0.000 (0.1085)
0.375 0.232 (0.143)
0.116 0.000 (0.116)
0.116 0.000 (0.116)
0.300 0.000 (0.300)
1.830 1.230 (0.600)
2.130 1.230 (0.900)
0.100 0.000 (0.100)
0.050 0.000 (0.050)
0.075 0.110 0.035
0.250 0.145 (0.105)
0.075 0.015 (0.060)
0.053 0.005 (0.048)
0.203 0.065 (0.138)
0.806 0.340 (0.466)
0.099 0.125 0.026
0.020 0.035 0.015
0.048 0.096 0.048
0.030 0.090 0.060
0.200 0.139 (0.061)
0.054 0.013 (0.041)
0.100 0.070 (0.030)
0.028 0.017 (0.011)
0.150 0.270 0.120
0.729 0.855 0.126
0.080 0.115 0.035
0.050 0.000 (0.050)
0.400 0.240 (0.160)
0.150 0.100 (0.050)
0.050 0.025 (0.025)
0.400 0.290 (0.110)
0.020 0.025 0.005
0.005 0.000 (0.005)
0.075 0.050 (0.025)
0.075 0.025 (0.050)
0.050 0.038 (0.013)
0.030 0.025 (0.005)
0.150 0.060 (0.090)
0.020 0.030 0.010
0.150 0.170 0.020
1.705 1.193 (0.513)
0.295 0.207 (0.088)
0.024 0.040 0.016
0.030 0.007 (0.023)
0.135 0.050 (0.085)
0.060 0.030 (0.030)
0.050 0.025 (0.025)
0.594 0.359 (0.235)
% £
100 12.874
17 2.246
83 10.628

Page 75

Appendix 3



Page 76



APPENDIX 4

Movements on Council Fund Unearmarked Reserves

Total Reserves as at 1 April 2015

Less - Base Level

Total Reserves above base level available for
delegation to Cabinet

Less - Allocation from the Contingency
Reserve for the costs of the speed limit review

Less - Allocation from the Contingency
Reserve for the contribution to meet the
estimated increase in levy required to meet
past and future claim liabilities in relation to
the former Municipal Mutual Insurance
company

Less - Allocation from the Contingency
Reserve to meet the resource requirements
for specialist social work for child protection

Plus projected underspend as at Month 10

Total projected Contingency Reserve as at
315t March 2016

Page 77

£m £m

10.515

(5.769)

4.746

(0.210)

(0.800)

(0.100)

1.110

4,746



Page 78



(zg00)  [(z60°0) ZrLo vET0 ‘lejol

*S]S09 Jouiw 0) sejefal /00°03 Buuiewsas ay) -Ajuessasauun Bumolioq (s1ebaibbe)

‘M3inal Japun daay pioAe 0) }a6pnq |ejdes ay) 0} uoHNGLIUOD JNO Ul 9SEAIOUI UE O} Sajejal WE/L'03(6LL°0 0810 (ez6°21) (cotcl) SaoUBUEA JBUIO

"M3ABJ Japun daay| "Apisqngs BuisnoH o) Bunejas juswisnipe yipne jsod e 0) sajejas wzzL'03/000°0 zzLo zzL0 0000 Apisans vyH
“puaiesh Je obieyoal B aq {|IM SIU} -S}S0J JOJOBNUCIANS [|B JO MBIASI
B 0] 8NP WEOL 03 0} pasealsul aney A9y Wolj syiom Jojoenuoaqns Jo ssbieyssy
‘woeo003
Aq puadsiano 0} 189S a1e sa1jua0 AJUNWWOD paLajsuel) ayj o) bunejas siso2 ANnn
'}S00
pajoadxaun Ue Sem UoIUM WLS0’03F Jo Junowe ay) ul abieyd e paniesal aaey pund

"M3IA3] Japun daay| JIDUN0D WOl YHH a4} ol Jybnoig sanuad Apunwwiod ay) Joj sabieys Buues|d|(z6L 0 0610 2L0°L 288°0 S32IA9S piojpue]
"S1500 Joull Jag)0 0} sajejal W00 03 bululewsl ay L
‘WSO 03 1509 0) pajosfold si yyH 104 Juaudinba Bupom 3By
‘puadsiapun
(wgg L 03) e pasieal sey sadiuas pue sjuawpedsp ssoioe Saue|es jo uonnguisipay
"S82UBJ2JU0D pue ASUB)NSUOD 0) Sajelas puadsiapun pajosfoid ay) Jo (WOZ0'03)
"puadsiapun (wWggo'03F)

‘M3In3) Japun dasy) e SOSBaja) 80IAI8S uewApueH ay) Buuaiap 1oy uoyosfosd ayy jo |leaoway|(zzL 0) (ovL°0) 182¢C leve yoddng g asueul
"Sa0UBHEA JOUIW O} Sajejal (Wg1.0 03) buluiewal ay]
‘Joeqjuo9 Bunuied [eo10Ao ay) uo puadsiapun Jeak-ul sy} 0) sajefal (WL90'03)
‘sapeJ} asnoy-ui buisn jo
JINsaJ B S| YdIYMm SIOJOBIUO0D gns U0 puadsiapun pajedidpue ay) 0) salejal (WooL 03)
‘s)gam Bujuiewal au)
Ul 8sealou) puads a9s piNod Yolym eale a|)ejoA e si siu) ybnoyje puadsiopun siy) o)
pajnguyuod sey Buuoyuow |nyaled pue seak se| o) bunerss aseys Jyoud (WeZ0 03) V

"MBIABJ J3pun dasy| ‘s|eusiew sa10)s 0} saje|al puadsiapun pajoalosd ay) Jo (wooz 03)|(2020) (62£0) SL0'8 P6€'8 aoueUBUIRY ¥ Slieday
*S9I0USIOYYD JoUIW JaY)0 0} sajeds (W |0°03F) Bulurewss ay |

‘MalAal Japun daay ‘puadsiapun (WyGO'03) B paInquiuod aaey suonaafosd Aieles(190°0) (590°0) 695°L vEO’L juswabeueyy ale)sy

(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
oW wnuno 19Bpng
pasinbay uopoy aouelUEA JO 8snNe) jse asueuep RPNV ETS
aouepeA pajosfoid pesiAay

g xipuaddy

0l polad - Joday asueuep Jole VHH

Page 79



Page 80



Appendix 6

Carry Forward Requests 2015/16

COMMUNITY & ENTERPRISE

Regeneration

An amount of £0.050m for investment costs relating to Town Centre projects which have been
delayed. This is the match funding element of European Union funding.

£0.036m for North Wales Economic Ambition Board (EAB) activity which has been delayed due to
resource availability.

An amount of £0.012m has been received from for private sponsorship which is to contribute to
Flintshire Business Week (FBW) 2016.

GOVERNANCE

ICT

Request to carry forward £0.042m for provision of Event and Log Management solutions.
Implementation has been delayed due to the need to implement Microsoft management system
software to maximise the functionality of the Event and Log Management solutions. This amount is
currently held in the service balances reserves.

EDUCATION & YOUTH

21% Century Schools

£0.080m for 21st Century Schools/School Modernisation which will be used to fund the condition
surveys on all schools needed for Band B schemes moving forward.

STREETSCENE & TRANSPORTATION

Car Parks
An amount of £0.054m for infrastructure costs at the County Hall car park and Flint Car Parks. Due to
delays in the implementation of Flintshire’s car parking strategy works have not been fully completed
this year.

Transportation

£0.170m for JMP who have been engaged to undertake a fundamental review of the transport service
provision to identify savings opportunities and efficiencies within the current operating arrangements.
Transportation savings already made in 2015/16 allow for this carry forward request to be made,
which relates to the JMP gain share payment for phase 2 of the implementation.

School Transport

£0.040m requested due to an early Easter this year which means the number of schools days will drop
in 2015/16 but increase in 2016/17. The carry forward balance will be required to cover the cost of
the additional days in the new financial year in addition to £0.090m already held for this purpose
within service balances reserves.

Page 81



Appendix 6

Speed Limit Review

£0.030m for advertisement and infrastructure works. A delay in the completion of the speed limit
review due to complex public objections impacting on project milestones. Five sites are committed to
being completed at the start of the 2016/17 financial year.

PLANNING & ENVIRONMENT

Pollution Control

£0.060m for investigatory works at former landfill sites that were intended to be completed by 31st
March 2016. One of the sites has complex constraints and works cannot begin on site until the summer
of 2016. The contract tenders have already been issued via a framework agreement in order for the
contract to be let and works to begin within the revised timescale.

Directorate Support

£0.017m for laptops to facilitate the move to agile working and to support asset rationalisation. These
will not be available until after the end of the financial year, however a commitment had been made
to purchase these out of the 2015/16 financial year.

ORGANISATIONAL CHANGE

Property Design & Consultancy

Request to roll forward £0.200m. This financial year Maintenance and Design have exceeded income
expectation, however next year there will potentially be a shortfall as more feasibility works have been
commissioned which are non-chargeable. The service is also being subject to a restructure resulting
in a new method of fee charging.

SOCIAL SERVICES

Development & Resources

£0.118m for project management staff to enable achievement of future business planning efficiencies.
A one-off budget was allocated to Social Services as a business plan investment in 2015/16, however
the project work has been delayed due to delays in the recruitment of staff.

Page 82



Agenda Item 7

Sir y Fflint
"E!Ew!o%!z.ire

CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Date of Meeting Thursday 14 April, 2016
Report Subject Forward Work Programme
Cabinet Member N/A
Report Author Member Engagement Manager
Type of Report Operational

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Overview & Scrutiny presents a unique opportunity for Members to determine the
Forward Work programme of the Committee of which they are Members. By
reviewing and prioritising the Forward Work Programme Members are able to
ensure it is Member-led and includes the right issues. A copy of the Forward Work
Programme is attached at Appendix 1 for Members’ consideration which has been
updated following the last meeting.

The Committee is asked to consider, and amend where necessary, the Forward
Work Programme for the Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee.

RECOMMENDATION

1 That the Committee considers the draft Forward Work Programme and
approve/amend as necessary.

2 That the Member Engagement Manager, in consultation with the Chair and
Vice-Chair of the Committee be authorised to vary the Forward Work
Programme between meetings, as the need arises.

Page 83



REPORT DETAILS

1.00 | EXPLAINING THE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

1.01 | Items feed into a Committee’s Forward Work Programme from a number
of sources. Members can suggest topics for review by Overview &
Scrutiny Committees, members of the public can suggest topics, items can
be referred by the Cabinet for consultation purposes, or by County Council
or Chief Officers. Other possible items are identified from the Cabinet
Work Programme and the Improvement Plan.

1.02 | In identifying topics for future consideration, it is useful for a ‘test of
significance’ to be applied. This can be achieved by asking a range of
questions as follows:

1. Will the review contribute to the Council’s priorities and/or objectives?
2. lIs it an area of major change or risk?

3. Are there issues of concern in performance?

4. |s there new Government guidance of legislation?

5. lIs it prompted by the work carried out by Regulators/Internal Audit?

2.00 | RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01 | None as a result of this report.

3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 | Publication of this report constitutes consultation.

4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 | None as a result of this report.

5.00 | APPENDICES

5.01 | Appendix 1 — Draft Forward Work Programme

6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 | None.

Contact Officer: Robert Robins
Member Engagement Manager
Telephone: 01352 702320

Page 84




E-mail: robert.robins@flintshire.qgov.uk

7.00

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01

Improvement Plan: the document which sets out the annual priorities of
the Council. It is a requirement of the Local Government (Wales) Measure
2009 to set Improvement Objectives and publish an Improvement Plan.

Page 85



mailto:robert.robins@flintshire.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme 2016/17

DATE O&S Focus REPORT FROM
Thursday, 12t Flintshire Community Endowment Fund Assurance Karen Armstrong
May 2016
10.00 Improvement Plan 2016/17 Information and development Karen Armstrong

Welsh Language Standards
Revenue Budget Monitoring (Month 11)

Forward Work Programme

Information
Monitoring

Approval and development

Fiona Mocko

Sara Dulson

Robert Robins

U

oo
~

Thursday, 16"
June 2016
10.00

Year end Improvement Plan Monitoring reports
Year end Chief officer Performance reports.
Revenue Budget Monitoring (Month 12))

Forward Work Programme

Assurance and comment
Monitoring
Monitoring

Approval and development

Robert Robins

Robert Robins

Sara Dulson

Robert Robins

Thursday, 14t July | LSB and strategic Partnerships Performance — end Assurance Karen Armstrong
2016 of year report
10.00
Revenue Budget Monitoring 15/16 — outturn Monitoring Sara Dulson
Forward Work Programme Approval and development Robert Robins
Items to be Health and Well-being update Information
scheduled
Customer services and Call-handling update Information

Page 1 of 1



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Emergency Planning Service Update
	Enc. 1 for Emergency Planning Update

	5 Revenue Budget Monitoring 2015/16 (Month 10)
	Enc. 1 for REVENUE BUDGE MONITORING 2015/16 (MONTH 10)

	7 Forward Work Programme
	Enc. 1 for Forward Work Programme (Corporate Resources)


